
CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

Thursday, 28 January, 2016

1.00 pm

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone





AGENDA

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

Thursday, 28 January, 2016, at 1.00 pm Ask for: Theresa Grayell
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone

Telephone 03000 416172
Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting 

Membership (15)

Conservative (5): Mrs A D Allen, MBE (Chairman), Mr R E Brookbank, Mrs P T Cole, 
Mr G Lymer and Mrs J Whittle

UKIP (2): Mrs Z Wiltshire (Vice-Chairman) and Mr B Neaves

Labour (1): Ms C J Cribbon and Mrs S Howes

Liberal Democrat (1): Mr M J Vye

Co-opted Members 
(6):

Mrs T Carpenter, Ms S Dunstan, Mr S Griffiths, Ms C Moody, Ms B 
Taylor and 1 vacancy 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

Item 
No
The Chairman will assume that all Members will read the reports before attending the 
meeting.  Officers are asked to assume the same when introducing reports.

A.  PANEL BUSINESS
A1 Apologies and substitutes 

A2 Minutes of the meeting of this Panel held on 8 December 2015 (Pages 5 - 16)

A3 Chairman's Announcements 

A4 Verbal Update from Our Children and Young People's Council (OCYPC) 



A5 Verbal Update by Cabinet Member 

B.  ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
B1 Adoption Service update (Pages 17 - 64)

B2 Progress report - Sufficiency, Placements and Commissioning Strategy, 2015 - 
2018 (Pages 65 - 78)

B3 Performance Management Scorecards (Pages 79 - 84)

EXEMPT ITEMS
(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services 
03000 416647

Wednesday, 20 January 2016

Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report.



1

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

MINUTES of a meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel held in Darent Room, 
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 8 December 2015.

PRESENT: Mrs A D Allen, MBE (Chairman), Mrs Z Wiltshire (Vice-Chairman), 
Mr R E Brookbank, Mrs T Carpenter, Mrs P T Cole, Ms S Dunstan, Mr G Lymer, 
Mrs C Moody, Mr M J Vye and Mrs J Whittle

ALSO PRESENT: Mr P J Oakford

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr P Segurola (Interim Director of Specialist Children's Services), 
Mr G Gurney (Interim Assistant Director for Corporate Parenting), Mrs S Skinner 
(Service Business Manager, Virtual School Kent) and Miss T A Grayell (Democratic 
Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

115. Apologies and Substitutes 

Apologies for absence were received from Ms C J Cribbon, Mr S Griffiths and Ms B 
Taylor.  

There were no substitutes.

116. Minutes of the meeting of this Panel held on 23 October 2015 
(Item A2)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Panel meeting held on 23 October 2015 are 
correctly recorded and they be signed by the Chairman. There were no matters 
arising.

117. Minutes of the meeting of the Kent Corporate Parenting Group held on 23 
November 2015, and brief verbal update 
(Item A3)

1. Mr M Vye referred to the recommendation made by the Corporate Parenting 
Select Committee (which was soon to report to County Council and then publish its 
report) that the Corporate Parenting Panel (CPP) and Kent Corporate Parenting 
Group (KCPG) should merge.  There was much overlap in the agendas of the two 
groups, so he felt that a merger would seem a good idea, unless officers would prefer 
to keep the operational role of the KCPG separate from the scrutiny role of the CPP.

2. Mr Segurola commented that a merger would benefit the way in which health 
and education issues could be covered, and professionals from those two disciplines 
be involved in the membership of a joint group. He added, however, that a joint group 
with a broader membership may lead to such large meetings that young people may 
be deterred from attending. 

Page 5

Agenda Item A2



2

3. RESOLVED that the minutes of the Kent Corporate Parenting Group held on 
23 November be noted.

118. Chairman's Announcements 
(Item A4)

1. The Chairman welcomed Gemma O’Grady to her first meeting of the Panel, 
following her recent appointment as Participation Co-ordinator. 

2. The Chairman announced that the clerk to the Panel, Theresa Grayell, had 
recently won a national award as the Democratic Services Officer of the year from 
the Association of Democratic Services Officers, the professional body of governance 
officers. Miss Grayell received the Panel’s congratulations and said that one of the 
criteria on which nominations had been judged was innovation, so her work on 
involving young people on the Panel had played a large part in her winning the 
award. Miss Grayell added that she viewed the award not only as a personal 
achievement but also as an acknowledgement of the pioneering work that Kent had 
done with its Corporate Parenting Panel and its forerunner, the Children’s Champions 
Board. 

119. Verbal Update from Our Children and Young People's Council (OCYPC) 
(Item A5)

1. Ms Dunstan gave a verbal update on the following:-

a) Heidi Coombes, Chris Dowle and Gurpreet Mahay had all left VSK to take 
up full-time employment, having passed their NVQ Level 2 in Business 
Administration; 

b) there were currently four vacancies for VSK apprentices; 

c) a winner had been chosen in the social worker business card competition 
and liaison with the communications team was in hand to move this 
forward;

d) work plans for 2016 for the North and West Kent teams included tackling 
stigmas around being in care, addressing standards of support from foster 
carers and social workers and improving communications between young 
people and the professionals working with them;

e) attendance at the first meeting of the OCYPC Junior Council had been 
disappointing. The possible reasons for this were being  investigated, and 
plans to promote the new Council put in place; 

f) developments in Youth Advisory Council work included encouraging young 
people to take part in recruitment interview panels, continued work on 
provision of accommodation and the establishment of a Facebook group; 

g) meetings had recently taken place with Surrey County Council’s 
participation team. Possible future projects arising from these meetings 
include consolidating surveys into one annual survey, seeking support from 

Page 6



3

the Council’s communications team to print and mail out newsletters and 
flyers, arranging a Christmas meal for 18+ care leavers, as many might be 
alone at that time of year, and further work on the possibility of forming a 
joint Children in Care Council with Surrey, to share expertise and arrange 
joint activities for those young people from Kent placed in Surrey; 

h) previous plans to take a party of  care leavers to the Hardelot centre in 
Normandy had now been replaced with six activity days, which would 
spread funding much further and allow more young people to join in and 
benefit from participation for the same cost; 

i) a Winter Fayre event would take place on 30 January 2016, open to 
children in care, County Council staff and foster carers and their families.  
A flyer was tabled and subsequently copied round to all Panel Members; 
and 

j) other ongoing work included:-

 work with the digital services team on the use of social networking 
methods to contact young people. It was important to find ways of 
allowing young people to interact safely online and to address 
safeguarding concerns;

 building links with Kent children and young people placed in other 
local authorities;

 developing the ‘recruit crew’, to support young people’s interview 
panels; and

 workshops to raise awareness of the important of participation. 

2. Ms Dunstan responded to comments and questions from the Panel, which 
were as follows:-

a) more unaccompanied asylum seeking children could be involved in 
activities, despite the perceived language barriers. One young Egyptian 
man who attended a residential course at the Kent Mountain Centre in 
Wales had been able to join in and gain much enjoyment from the outing. 
Other young people attending had established a simple system of ‘flash 
cards’ to help him communicate, so limited English skills had not been a 
barrier to him enjoying the event; 

b) elected Members could be encouraged to contribute to the funding of such 
outings from their individual Member grants.  When the Hardelot trip had 
been discussed at a Panel meeting, Members had pledged contributions 
and a method of transferring the funding had been found, with the help of 
the Democratic Services Officer and Community Liaison Officers; and

c) the Cabinet Member, Mr Oakford, advised Ms Dunstan that elected 
Members on the Panel would cover the cost of the six outings listed (just 
over £5,000) between them and that he would raise the issue of funding at 
the meeting of the full County Council on 10 December 2015 and 
encourage Members to consider using part of their individual Member 
grants to support future activities for Kent’s children in care. Mr Segurola 

Page 7



4

added that he would underwrite the costs of any activity to ensure that it 
could go ahead. 

3. Mrs Skinner confirmed that recruitment to the VSK apprentice vacancies was 
currently progressing and that she would work with Gemma O’Grady to develop the 
work of the ‘recruit crew’.

4. RESOLVED that the verbal updates be noted, with thanks.   

120. Verbal Update by Cabinet Member 
(Item A6)

1. Mr Oakford gave a verbal update on the following issues:-

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) – Kent now had a total of 
1,388 UASC, 986 of whom were under 18. A voluntary dispersal system had received 
a disappointing response, with only one other local authority offering to participate, 
taking only 3 young people. To make any real impact on the numbers that Kent was 
being asked to accommodate, every local authority in the UK would need to take 15 
young people. Kent was currently seeking an increase in the reserve powers in the 
Immigration Bill to impose a mandatory national dispersal system. A meeting with 
Ministers, the Local Government Association and local authorities was due to take 
place in the week commencing 14 December to discuss the issue and achieve 
action. UASC were currently arriving mostly from Eritrea and Afghanistan.  Very few 
had come from Syria, as refugees from that country tended to travel mostly in family 
groups.
Children in care placed out of county – Kent had had to place 367 of its children in 
care with other local authorities, mainly due to a lack of foster care places available 
within the county. This figure contrasted with the 1,366 children in care currently 
placed in Kent by other local authorities. 
LILAC – Kent had achieved 6 out of the 7 standards in its recent LILAC assessment, 
and all LILAC recommendations were now being put into action. Much credit was due 
to Mr Segurola and his officer team for their work in raising standards in Specialist 
Children’s Services. 
National Voice Workshop – Mr Oakford and Mr Segurola had attended this 
workshop on 21 November. 
National Children’s Conference – Mr Oakford had attended this recent 3-day 
conference in Bournemouth. 
Visits – Mr Oakford had continued his programme of visits to centres around the 
county. 

2. Mr Oakford responded to comments and questions, which were as follows:-

a) the number of UASC in Kent was worrying, as large numbers would surely 
make it harder to monitor young people and find any who might abscond.  
The Government must be made fully aware of the difficulties Kent faced in 
accommodating so many, and should not expect Kent to bear this burden 
alone.  Mr Oakford added that he was seeking different ways in which to 
highlight the impact and pressure the Government to take action. To 
emphasise the breadth of the impact upon Kent’s services, he involved 
colleagues from Health, the Police and Education; and

Page 8



5

b) the Chairman added that the Children’s Social Care and Health Cabinet 
Committee on 2 December had also made a strong recommendation to 
seek Government help in addressing this as a national problem. 

3. RESOLVED that the verbal updates be noted, with thanks. 
 

121. Views of Young People In Care 
(Item B1)

Sophie, 24, a recent graduate and former child in care, was present for this item and 
addressed the Panel. 

1. I was in care from the age of 15, but not with Foster Carers: I lived with 
relatives of my birth family in a kin fostering arrangement. In my time in care I met a 
number of social workers but I never felt able to trust them; it seemed to be ‘just a 
job’ for them. From 16 onwards I had a key worker whom, I felt, did listen to me.  I 
had a good bond with her and felt supported by her.  She came to my graduation and 
was so proud of me, having helped me succeed.  Having someone whom you want 
to make proud of you makes you seek to feel proud of yourself. 

2. As a child in care, you have to address people’s expectations of you.  You can 
be labelled as a ‘problem child’, which I felt happened to me as soon as my Mum 
died.  I did my GCSEs on my own, without support, and got into boarding school with 
a bursary.  I found out about a bursary as a relative acted as an advocate for me, but 
it’s very easy to get lost when you leave care; you need to know to ask about 
bursaries and scholarships.   You need to be able to see the choices before you can 
make them.  Children in care cannot see, or are not told about, these choices, and 
this is not fair.  

I am not sure that all foster carers and social workers have this information, to 
give to young people.  

I set up a scheme to get children who are on the edge of care into boarding 
schools, but this had very limited success and I regret that this didn’t really 
take off.  Some schools are not well equipped to support young people.  The 
quality of pastoral care is important.  
3. Boarding school was so much more than school for me; the pastoral care that 
I received was very important. I was a boarder in the week and went home at the 
weekends. It gave me a release from being a child in care and I was able to balance 
school life with home life and make the most of both areas.  Boarding school became 
another family for me, with the school matron as a pastoral figure. The structure and 
routine helped me a lot; in my home life I only knew chaos. Having good pastoral 
care alongside my education was invaluable. Young people need structure and 
direction. Many people tiptoe round children in care but that isn’t helpful; boarding 
school didn’t do that to me, which was good. From them I got a good education as 
well as learning life skills.

It seems that the key thing that is missing for young people in care is stability, 
and having someone whom they can be sure cares about them and will keep in 
touch.  A corporate body like a local authority cannot fill this role. 

Page 9



6

I taught at a boarding school for many years and know the value of the pastoral 
care that young people receive there. Support from social workers can be 
random, and I wonder if young people know about the advocacy services that 
are available to them. Children in care can help to train social workers and 
could help future generations of social workers to understand the vulnerability 
felt by children in care.  You were fortunate to have the drive to move forwards 
but many don’t, so we need to keep working at improving support to young 
people in care and leaving care. 
4. Boarding school helped me a lot.  Everyone needs someone whom they can 
turn to for guidance and someone whom they can see as a ‘base’ to come back to.  
That person helped with moral support and building self-belief. Because I felt I had 
them as a base, I felt able to establish my own base.  My education at boarding 
school helped me with my whole life experience.  I felt special and that someone 
wanted to help me, I felt some self-worth. 

Would it help young people to have a ‘buddy group’ around them, to give 
support and share experiences?
5. I never saw myself as part of a group as there was no-one else at school who 
was in care.  I would not have used being in care as an excuse to make a group; I 
built my own support network because I had my own self-belief, and because I had 
been able to develop the life skills I needed.

That’s a good message to hear about boarding schools.  They tend to have a 
good code of respect and discipline and set boundaries better than other 
schools.  Perhaps other schools need to be more robust in their discipline and 
structure.  Corporate Parents need to take this on board.

Systems do not care for young people; only individuals can care for young 
people.  Not enough children in care go to university. 
6. My involvement with the County Council stopped with Catch 22, who paid my 
rent while I was at university.  This made a massive difference to me.  My 
Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) checked up on me all through university.  I got 
myself to university; nobody pushed me, which is good.  My IRO got me a bursary, 
and was a big help while I was there.  University is good if you know what you want 
to do, but it isn’t for everyone. To manage at university you have to be able to 
structure your life; if you are chaotic you will not cope. 

I know from setting up the boarding schools scheme in 2011 that structure and 
routine can change the lives of children in care.  If they are at boarding school 
during the week, they can often cope better with weekends at home, and their 
carers can often cope better as well. Perhaps the finance of boarding school 
places could be reviewed.  What is your view on this?
7. My brother also went to boarding school and then to university.  If you are 
lucky you will find out about resources available and make the right contacts to get 
you there.  The National Children’s Foundation (NCF) funded my place at boarding 
school. 

I was disappointed to hear your views about, and experience of, social 
workers.  I am sure most social workers feel they work well with young people. 
Perhaps the County Council needs to do more work on training social workers 
and foster carers on what support young people need, and to help foster carers 
understand what chances there are for young people in care who want to go on 

Page 10



7

to higher education. It’s a good point that if you haven’t got a foster carer you 
need someone else to be your ‘one person’. 
8. At boarding school there were many foreign boarders, and staff there took on 
the role of short-term ‘carers’ for these pupils during term time. It’s an arrangement 
which worked well.  The boarders would then stay with friends during the school 
holidays. 

9. I must say that my IRO was amazing.  My experience of social workers was 
not good but I have nothing against them.  You need to build a bond with a social 
worker; for me that just didn’t happen. 

The boarding school scheme was very forward-thinking; we should seek to 
revisit it. We should not miss this chance to help young people.

Are foster carers aware of the issues faced by young people in care who want 
to go to university?  

(Teresa Carpenter replies) It’s a lottery and depends on who you are fostered 
by.  Some foster carers do not know about university or college. My concern is 
about pastoral care for young people. 
10. I still meet up with my pastoral carer.  I have never been as well nurtured as I 
was by them. 
(Teresa Carpenter) The key role of a foster carer is as a parent; they don’t 
necessarily know about education issues. We need to ensure that foster carers 
have good information about education. 

As part of the corporate parenting role we should advocate for all children in 
care and seek to inspire all foster carers to do the best they can for young 
people.  We should set a good example of the standard we expect for our 
children in care.  

Thank you so much for giving your time to attend and talk to the Panel today.  
What you have told us is very useful. We wish you all the very best for the 
future.   

122. Regional Collaboration Meeting 
(Item B2)

1. Mr Gurney introduced the report and responded to comments and questions 
from the Panel, as follows:-

a) when benchmarking, it was important to consider the reason for measuring 
what was being measured, and then be clear about the differences 
between, and relative values of, ‘listening’ and ‘scrutiny’ roles; 

b) the regional collaboration meeting had been a useful networking day, and it 
was useful to be able to compare the approaches taken by different 
authorities to involving children in care on their corporate parenting bodies 
and to exchange ideas on the role played by young people.  In comparing 
approaches taken by other authorities, it was important to bear in mind that 
most had many fewer children in care than Kent had and so did not face 
the same challenges; 

Page 11



8

c) Mr Gurney was asked if he felt that the Panel held Kent’s officers to 
account effectively. He said that officers expected to be challenged and 
held to account and the level of challenge was good. Via the Panel, officers 
could also hold elected Members to account about their engagement with 
children and young people and the extent of their involvement, eg in the 
regular VSK participation and engagement events; and

d) discussion at Panel meetings was generally felt to be of good quality and 
was useful in raising ideas for future work and engagement.

2. Mr Segurola added that the recommendations of the Corporate Parenting 
Select Committee, which was soon to report to County Council and then publish its 
report, reinforced the work of the Corporate Parenting Panel and its broadening of its 
representation, eg by the review of its terms of reference in September 2015. Officers 
empowered elected Members to engage and challenge the quality of care received 
by children and young people in Kent. The Cabinet Member, Mr Oakford, added that 
UASC should be more involved in corporate parenting work, and suggested that 
future agenda items for the Panel include this and the views of young people on what 
would make a good social worker. 

3. RESOLVED that the information set out in the report, and given in response to 
comments and questions, be noted. 

123. Leading Improvements for Looked After Children assessment (LILAC) 
(Item B3)

4. Mrs Skinner introduced the report and explained that the County Council had 
achieved a further two LILAC standards, so now had six of the seven.  Although there 
had been much improvement in staff development, the County Council had been 
judged to have not yet achieved this standard at its last LILAC assessment. It was 
hoped that staff would be able to engage with more young people, and young 
people’s awareness of engagement needed to be raised.  Mrs Skinner responded to 
comments and questions from the Panel, as follows:-

a) work undertaken in this area since the LILAC assessment, and the action 
plan of future work, at both strategic and operational levels, would 
hopefully be sufficient for the Council to be judged to have achieved the 
standard if it were to be assessed again; and

b) LILAC assessments were usually undertaken every two years, but Mrs 
Skinner undertook to find out if an earlier re-assessment may be possible, 
eg for authorities so near to achieving all the standards.

5. RESOLVED that the LILAC assessment and its findings be noted and the 
need for work to continue to address the staff standard (Standard 4), not yet 
achieved, be supported. 

124. Exclusion of the Press and Public 

RESOLVED that, under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the 

Page 12



9

grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information, as defined in 
paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

(OPEN ACCESS TO MINUTES)

125. Issues faced by Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children 
(Item B4)

Three young men were in attendance for this item to talk to the Panel about their 
experiences of settling in Kent as unaccompanied asylum seekers. They were 
supported by Flo, a social worker specialising in working with UASC, and an 
interpreter.  

Welcome to this meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel. Can you tell us how 
long you have been here and how well you have settled?
O: I am 15 years old and came to the UK from Eritrea in October 2014. I have settled 
well and attend school in Canterbury.  I sometimes attend the mosque. 

What is your favourite thing about living in the UK?
O: Education. There is a teacher who is helping me to learn English.

So are you enjoying your education? What are your plans for the future?
O: Yes. I want to go to Sixth Form and then to University. I want to be an interpreter.

M: I came from Afghanistan four years ago.  I am in the Sixth Form in Canterbury.  I 
hope to go to university if I get the right results, and I also want to be an interpreter. I 
was in foster care for 3 years but I now live independently, sharing a house.  Living in 
the UK is a big change from living in my own country.  Here I get much support and 
help to live independently.  When I lived with foster carers they helped me a lot to 
learn how to manage money and look after myself.  

Do you still get support from them or other professionals?
M: Yes, from my social worker, Flo, and others.  They have helped me a lot.

F: I came to the UK from Eritrea in January 2016.  I play football for a junior team and 
I want to be a professional footballer when I am older.  The education is very good 
here.

When you arrived in the UK, did you go to a reception centre?
Flo: They all went to foster carers; they were all under 16 so too young for a 
reception centre. Being with foster carers helped them settle. 

Was it difficult to find the right foster carers?  Was the language barrier a 
problem?
Flo: Matching is important, and the foster families have helped them with learning 
English. 

Have you made lots of friends here?
F: Yes, I have made friends with my team mates.  We meet up at weekends.

Flo, how did you come to be working with UASC?  Did you choose to?

Page 13



10

Flo: Yes, I chose to work with UASC as they are great young people.  They rise to 
the challenge of learning new languages and learning about new cultures and it is 
good to be able to see them settle and flourish. 

Do you go to youth clubs or centres?
M: In Canterbury there is the Riverside Youth Centre, which supports young people 
who are learning English as a second language.  They have good activities and 
sports facilities there.  I don’t go to that centre but I know it is good, especially for 
young people who do not speak much English. 
Flo:  Young people in Canterbury are lucky to have such facilities as these are not 
available in all areas. 

Do you experience hostility from local people, when they know you are seeking 
asylum?
M: I did sometimes, when I first came here. Now I don’t care about it; I don’t get 
involved.  I think ‘that is just your point of view – it’s not my problem.’

Do you meet other young people from your own culture?
M: Yes.  In the house where I live there is another young man from Afghanistan and 
we get on well.  I have other friends from Afghanistan as well as from England, 
Germany and Italy – from all over. 

Philip Segurola: I am the Director of the services that you use. Can you tell me 
how good our services are? 
M: The services I have received are good and have been helpful.  It is hard at first to 
come into a new country and a new culture, but now I have learnt the culture I am 
happy that this is the best place for me.
O: I felt vulnerable at school as it is difficult to get interpreters there. We need more 
interpreters.

What if there were an urgent issue, such as a medical appointment or an 
education issue, which needed an interpreter?  Could that be difficult?
O: Sometimes an interpreter does not come when they are supposed to, so going to 
the doctor could be difficult; I would not be able to explain my symptoms to a doctor 
in English. 
Flo: Review meetings would be difficult without an interpreter; we would have to relay 
information to a young person via a letter or by telephone.  This would take a lot of 
time and is clearly not satisfactory. 

The Panel has heard that English as a Second Language (ESL) courses are not 
always available where they are needed, eg young people from Gravesham 
have to travel to Lewisham to access the nearest ESL courses. 
Flo: This is not a problem for young people in schools, but once they leave school 
there is no provision for them.  

Can you tell us anything we could do to make your experience better?
F: I have also had trouble with interpreters not turning up. My English has improved 
now but when I first came to the UK I really needed to rely on interpreters. I agree 
that we need more interpreters. 

Do you speak any second languages?

Page 14



11

M: I speak two main languages (Pashto and Dari) and also Persian, Indian and 
Greek. 
F: I speak Persian and English.
O: I speak Arabic and Eritrean.

What do you think of English food? 
M: I like fish and chips but I don’t like McDonalds!

Do you attend local schools?  Did you have any problems integrating?
M: Yes, I attend a local school. When I was new at the school I had one-to-one tuition 
from a teacher but in the same classroom as everyone else; I wasn’t in a separate 
class. 
O: Sometimes I have one-to-one tuition in a separate session.  This year I have been 
more involved in school but I would like the one-to-one sessions to continue as well. 
F: Yes, I attend a local school and have a special teacher for one-to-one sessions in 
English and Maths, which is very helpful. I have integrated well.  In the morning I 
have a short session on my own but then I join the rest of the class.
Flo: F has much homework to build up his English skills. 

Do you have any questions you want to ask us?
M: No, just to say thank you for the social workers you have given me and for the 
help I have had since I have been here. 
F: I would also like to say thank you very much for the support I have had.  

We have young people working with Virtual School Kent who can help you with 
any problems that you might have. Tell them and they can tell us. We talk to 
them regularly to identify what we do well and the work we need to do to 
improve the support we give to young people. 

Thank you very much for coming to speak to us today.  We hope to see you 
again to hear how you have continued to settle in. We wish you all the very 
best for the future.   

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



By: Peter Oakford, Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s 
Services
Andrew Ireland, Corporate Director of Social Care, Health 
and Wellbeing 

To: Corporate Parenting Panel – 28 January 2016

Subject:
         
ADOPTION SERVICE UPDATE

Classification: Unrestricted

Electoral Division: All

Summary:

Recommendations:

Attached are reports providing information  on:
 Children’s Adoption Journey – April 2015 to 

September 2015
 Adopters’ Journey – April 2015 to September 

2015

Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to  
NOTE and COMMENT on the content of the reports.

1 Introduction

1.1 As reported to previous meetings of the Corporate Parenting Panel, Coram is 
working in partnership with the County Council to manage the Adoption 
Service. Additional post adoption support services are provided by Action for 
Children.

1.2 Attached for information are reports on:
 Children’s Adoption Journey – April 2015 to September 2015 

(Appendix 1) 
 Adopters’ Journey – April 2015 to September 2015 (Appendix 2)

2. Recommendations

2.1 Members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to NOTE and 
COMMENT on the content of the reports

3. Background documents: none

Yashi Shah MBE
Interim Head of Adoption Service, Social Care, Health and Wellbeing
03000 413288
Yashi.shah@kent.gov.uk

Page 17

Agenda Item B1

mailto:Yashi.shah@kent.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Corporate Parenting Panel
28 January 2016
Annual Report: Children’s adoption journey 
April – September 2015
Kent County Council and Coram partnership

Yashi Shah, Interim Head of Adoption Service, Coram

Kevin Yong, Senior Data Analyst, Coram

Page 19



Contents
Contents....................................................................................................................................2

Summary Statistics....................................................................................................................3

1 Introduction ......................................................................................................................4

2 Timescale analysis .............................................................................................................5

3 Children adopted ............................................................................................................11

4 Children currently placed for adoption, not yet adopted ...............................................13

5 Children placed for adoption ..........................................................................................14

6 Matches ..........................................................................................................................17

7 Placement Orders ...........................................................................................................17

8 Children waiting for adoptive placements ......................................................................20

9 Children with a plan that has changed............................................................................20

10 Children in care proceedings with an Agency Decision for adoption...........................21

11 Children who had an Agency Decision for adoption ....................................................21

12 Conclusion....................................................................................................................22

Page 20



Summary Statistics

 Between 1 April and 30 September 2015 58 children were adopted, 53.4% fewer 

adoptions than in the same period in 2014/15 (103 children).

 On 30 September 2015, 61 children were placed for adoption but not yet adopted.

 Between 1 April and 30 September 2015 44 children were placed with an adoptive 

family, 47.6% fewer children than in the same period in 2014/15 (84 children). This 

includes 4 relinquished babies and 6 disabled children 

 1 child was placed with voluntary adoption agency adopters, 1 was placed with relatives, 

initially through foster 2 adopt, and 1 was placed with their foster carer. A further 3 

were placed with repeat adopters.

 Between 1 April and 30 September 2015 the Agency Decision Maker agreed matches 

for 46 children. 43.9% lower than in the same period in 2014/15 (82 children)

 Between 1 April and 30 September 2015 46 children were granted a Placement Order, a 

15% increase on the number of Placement Orders granted in the same period in 

2014/15 (40 children).

 We are actively family finding for 1 of the 33 children waiting at the end of September. 

The child is a 2 year old, White British boy with disability, whose placement order was 

granted in January 2015. 

 Between 1 April and 30 September 2015, 18 children’s plans were changed from 

adoption, 5 to permanent foster care, 8 have returned to birth family, 3 to SGO and 2 

returned to birth family under supervision orders.

 Between 1 April and 30 September 2015 the Agency Decision Maker agreed the plan 

for adoption for 58 children, 31.8% more than in the same period last year (41).

 On 30 September 2015, 19 children were in care proceedings with an agency decision 

for adoption but no Placement Order. 

Page 21



1 Introduction

This is a 6-monthly report that sets out a detailed analysis of the performance of the Council 

in relation to children’s adoption journeys between 1 April and 30 September 2015. A report 

summarising the Council’s performance in relation to the adopters’ journey is attached 

separately. The current contract between Kent and Coram expires on 22 January 2016 and 

the management of the adoption service will transfer to Kent on the 23rd of January 2016. 

Therefore this will be the last child’s journey report presented to the CPP jointly by Kent and 

Coram. In future the report will be provided the Kent appointed Head of Adoption Service.

This report contains performance data and achievements, with the data used in this report 

sourced from information provided by the Management Information Unit (MIU), the Legal 

Team, Panel Team and from tracking meetings and performance surgeries. Only some of the 

data has been validated by MIU due to the deployment of the new ICS (Liberi).

This report contains the following information on the children:

 Timescale analysis 

 Children adopted from 1 April to 30 September 2015 (validated)

 Children currently placed for adoption, who are not yet adopted

 Children placed for adoption from 1 April to 30 September 2015 (validated)

 Children Matched with a family

 Placement Orders granted from 1 April to 30 September 2015 (validated)

 Children waiting at the end of September 2015: timescales, ethnicity, sibling status, 

age profile, developmental and health needs

 Children with a plan that has changed between 1 April to 30 September 2015

 Children in court proceedings with a Plan for Adoption

We have again seen improvement in performance this year, building on what has been 

achieved in the past three years. This year’s improvement was expected due to the success 

of the high number of placed in previous years, which has led to lower caseloads for family 

finding social workers and an increased capacity for early family finding and progressing 

links and matches more efficiently.

Page 22



2 Timescale analysis

2.1 Time from entering care (BLA) to Agency Decision for adoption plan (ADM BI) 

The Agency Decision Maker should consider the adoption plan within two months of the 

statutory review when a plan of adoption is agreed, which in turn should be agreed at the 

second (4-month) review after a child is taken into care. These are both the responsibility of 

MIU to track and report on. This effectively means that ADM BI decisions should be made 

within 6 months of a child entering care. The responsibility for this lies with the children in 

care teams and therefore we have recommended that Kent looks at what more can be done 

to improve performance.

For the 58 best interest decisions made this year, 67.2% were made within six months of the 

child being taken into care, compared with 72.8% in 2013/14, 58.7% in 2013/14 and 20.5% 

in 2012/13, so while on the whole the authority’s performance is improving, there has been 

a slight dip in performance so far this year and it needs to improve further. Figure 1 shows 

the average time taken by district for decisions made in the first six months of this year.

Figure 1

3.9 4.8 5.6

3.4 2.8 3.6 4.2
5.3

2.8

6.3
7.6

8.6
6.9

10.4

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11

Average months from BLA to ADM BI by district

Less than 6 months More than 6 months

The year 2014/15 was the first year the average time from entering care to the Agency 

Decision was less than six months. This performance has been maintained (5.97 months), 

but there have been a couple of children for whom the decision was delayed, taking nearly 4 

years – for one the plan changed to adoption when their foster carers decided they wanted 

to adopt them; for the other the plan was reviewed two years after they came into care and 

Page 23



the plan of adoption agreed. Excluding them from the calculation gives us an average of 4.7 

months. In 2012/13 it took an average of 11.7 months for the ADM BI decision to be made; 

this fell to 6.4 months in 2013/14 and 5 months in 2014/15.

2.2 Time from becoming looked after (BLA) to Placement Order (PO)

As part of the Family Justice Review, care proceedings should take no more than 26 weeks 

(6 months) to be completed in the courts. While this timescale does not apply to placement 

orders, we use this threshold as it is in the best interests of the child to get the placement 

order as quickly as possible where the care plan is for adoption. 

This timescale has been met for 45.7% (21) of the POs granted in the first six months of this 

year, compared with 45.6% in 2014/15, 30.5% in 2013/14 and 7.9% in 2012/13. 

Performance overall is improving but needs to improve further – children granted a PO so 

far this year waited an average of 6.6 months after entering care compared with 7 months 

in 2014/15, 10 months in 2013/14 and 14 months in 2012/13.

Performance varies between the districts – Figure 2 shows the average time taken by district 

for POs granted in the first six months of this year.

Figure 2

5.2 5.3 5.9
4.6 4.1

9.2
10.4

8.2

11.4

7.4
9.0

0
2
4
6
8

10
12

Average months from BLA to PO by district

Less than 6 months More than 6 months

2.3 Time from BLA to moving in with an adoptive family (Adoption scorecard 
indicator A1) 

The DfE Adoption Scorecard looks at performance in relation to children adopted over a 

three-year period, with thresholds set by the Department that are decreasing each year and 

Page 24



it is likely they will decrease further. Table 1 below shows the thresholds, Kent’s 

performance and comparison with statistical neighbours and England where the data is 

available (the last data was published in January 2015).

Table 1:

2009-2012 2010-2013 2011-2014 2012-2015 2013-2016
Threshold 726 days 608 days 547 days 486 days 426 days

Kent 683 days 703 days 680 days 617 days (estimated) 575 days (forecast)

Stat neighbours 651 days 647 days 654 days n/a n/a

England 636 days 647 days 628 days n/a n/a

This shows that the authority’s performance is improving but still exceeding the thresholds 

set. This is largely due to the fact that 34% of the children placed in 2012/13 and 2013/14 

had been in care since before 2011/12, and a further 36% had been taken into care in 

2011/12.

Performance by financial year improved from 718 days (23.6 months) in 2012/13, 650 days 

(21.4 months) in 2013/14 and 531 days (17.5 months) in 2014/15. However, in the first 6 

months of this year the average time taken from entering care and moving in with an 

adoptive family has increased to 549 days (18 months). This included a case where a child 

was adopted by their step-parents, who lived in the USA, and the delay was due to the legal 

processes that needed to be followed to achieve this – excluding this case brings the 

average down to 516 days (17 months), an improvement on 2014/15. 

The time taken historically to grant placement orders also directly impacts on performance 

against this measure – for example children adopted in 2011-2014 waited an average of 453 

days (15 months) between entering care and their placement order being granted. This fell 

to 296 days (9.7 months) for children adopted this year – still higher than the 9 months we 

are aiming for.

As a result of this historical performance it is all but impossible for us to meet the 426-day 

threshold set for 2013-2016 so Coram has set an internal target of meeting the 426-day (14-

month) threshold for children granted a PO since 1 April 2013. At present the average is 417 

days (13.6 months) for children in this cohort who have been placed for adoption, so for 

these children we have met the threshold set by Government.

Page 25



Figure 3 shows the performance this year of the districts against this measure based on the 

children placed – eight districts have met the 14-month timescale. Overall the children 

placed so far this year waited an average of 395 days (13 months). 

Figure 3

11.9
8.6

12.4 12.6 10.1 8.0 8.1 7.1

17.3 17.7

30.2

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

Average months from BLA to placement by district this year

Less than 14 months More than 14 months

2.4 Time from ADM BI to presentation to panel of a match with an adoptive family

The panel should consider a match with an adoptive family within six months of the best 

interest decision being made. In the first six months of this financial year 79.5% of matches 

presented to panel met this timescale, compared with 41% in 2014/15, 35.3% in 2013/14 

and 37.1% in 2012/13, so performance has dramatically improved over the last six months 

compared to the relatively steady performance of the last three years. Meeting this 

timescale is dependent on the prompt granting of placement orders and meeting the 

timescale set out in 2.5, which looks at the timeliness in matching a child with a prospective 

adopter once a placement order is granted. This supports our expectation that performance 

this year should improve further on what was achieved in 2014/15.

2.5 Time from PO to approval by ADM of a match with an adoptive family (Adoption 
Scorecard indicator A2)

As with 2.3, the DfE Adoption Scorecard looks at performance in relation to children 

adopted over a three-year period, with thresholds set by the Department that are 

decreasing each year. Table 2 below shows the thresholds, Kent’s performance and 

comparison with statistical neighbours and England where the data is available. 

Page 26



Table 2:

2009-2012 2010-2013 2011-2014 2012-2015 2013-2016
Threshold None 182 days 151 days 122 days 122 days

Kent 176 days 210 days 223 days 222 days (estimated) 217 days (forecast)

Stat neighbours 192 days 205 days 221 days n/a n/a

England 195 days 210 days 217 days n/a n/a

Again the performance is affected by the large number of children who were not placed 

with adoptive families before 2012/13, which also means that we will not be able to meet 

the threshold set for 2013-2016 for children adopted in that time period.

Figure 4 shows the performance of each district this year against this measure for children 

matched.

Figure 4

1.7 1.7
2.9

1.2 1.6

3.7
1.7

10.6

4.2 4.3

8.4

0
2
4
6
8

10
12

Average months from PO to match this year by district

Less than 4 months More than 4 months

Our annual performance against this measure has been improving, from 250 days (8.2 

months) in 2012/13 to 216 days (7.1 months) in 2013/14 to 248 days (8.2 months) in 

2014/15 to 102 days (3.4 months) for children matched so far this year. This is a reflection of 

the collective partnership working between the different stakeholders involved in the 

linking, matching and placement of children, as well as the continuing focus on performance 

management by all levels of management.

Page 27



We continue to have challenging internal timescales to ensure there are no unnecessary 

delays:

- A social worker should visit a family within five working days of the family being 

shortlisted for as a potential match for a child – on average this is taking 7.7 working 

days, with 42.9% of visits conducted this year being made within five working days;

- The matching meeting (where a family is selected to be presented to panel) should 

take place within ten working days of the family being visited – this has been met for 

21.3% of selections made this year with average time taken being 19.9 working days 

currently, which is lower than the average of 24 days in 2014/15; 

- The match should be presented to panel within 15 working days of the matching 

meeting – this was met for 67.4% of matches presented to panel this year with the 

average time taken of 15 working days, faster than in 2014/15 (22 working days).

The Family Finding Team Manager in conjunction with the data administrator has recently 

undertaken an analysis of the above timescales. As a result of this, the team manager will 

undertake more work to understand what further improvements can be achieved which will 

be discussed with the relevant children's social care managers and other stakeholders.

3 Children adopted

Between 1 April to 30 September 2015 58 children were adopted in Kent County Council, 

which is 53.4% fewer than the number of children adopted in the same period in 2014/15 

(103). To provide some context, national data available shows that the number of children 

adopted fell from 1370 in Q1 of 2014/15 to 1140 in Q1 of 2015/16, a 16.8% fall. The 

difference is that the number of children adopted in 2014/15 (182) was the highest by any 

authority for many years and so a larger fall in adoption numbers is to be expected.

Figure 5 shows the number of children adopted by month and Figure 6 for the number of 

children adopted by area.

Page 28



Figure 5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Number of children adopted each month

2013/14 (n=145) 2014/15 (n=182) 2015/16 (n=58)

Figure 6

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Number of AOs granted this year by district

Within 6 months of placement More than 6 months after placement

N=58

The children not yet adopted are being tracked through a number of mechanisms – 

performance surgeries, joint tracking meetings, and by reviewing officers. A timescales 

analysis indicates that the robust performance monitoring continues to impact on the 

overall timescales: of the 58 children adopted between 1 April to 30 September 2015, 50% 

(29) were adopted within 6 months of the adoptive placement, compared to 44% in 

2014/15, 37.2% in 2013/14 and 30.4% in 2012/13. Figure 7 shows the average time from 

placement to AO, for AOs granted in the first six months of this financial year.

Page 29



Figure 7

5.0 4.7 4.9 5.4 5.1
6.2

8.1 7.6 8.1

6.4

9.6

7.6

6.0

10.9

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Average months from Placement to AO by district

Less than 6 months More than 6 months

The average time across the county was 201.8 days (6.6 months), which compares well with 

the most recent national data available – in January 2015 the national average for 2013/14 

was published (9 months).

Coram is projecting to achieve 105 Adoption Orders this year, which assumes that an order 

will be granted this year for the majority of children placed for adoption before 30 

September 2015.

4 Children currently placed for adoption, not yet adopted

On 30 September 2015, 61 children were placed with an adoptive family but not yet 

adopted. 42 of these children had been in placement for less than 6 months. See Figure 8 

for number of children currently placed for adoption, by area.

Page 30



Figure 8

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16

Number of children placed not yet adopted by district

More than 6 months since placement (19)

Less than 6 months since placement (42)

N=61

20 (32.8%) had been waiting 2 months or less since placement, 13 (21.3%) had been waiting 

2-4 months, 9 (14.8%) had been waiting for 4-6 months, 13 (21.3%) were waiting 6-12 

months. Six children (9.8%) had been placed for more than one year.

There are still considerable delays in the Court system, in part due to more appeals by birth 

parents, and this has affected timescales. Our analysis indicates that it takes an average of 

2.6 months for an adoption order to be granted after an application is submitted (3 months 

in 2014/15), for both Canterbury and Medway courts. Four cases this year took over seven 

months. The shortest took 34 days.

5 Children placed for adoption

Between 1 April to 30 September 2015 44 children were placed with an adoptive family, 

47.6% fewer children than in 2014/15 when 84 children were placed in the equivalent 

period. This is in line with the national picture, where there has been a 42.4% fall in 

placements from quarter 1 2014/15 (1410) to quarter 1 2015/16 (990).

Figure 9 for number of children placed for adoption by month and Figure 10 for the number 

of children placed for adoption by district. 

Page 31



Figure 9

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Number of children placed each month

2013/14 (n=170) 2014/15 (n=143) 2015/16 (n=44)

Figure 10

0
2
4
6
8

10
12

Number of placements this year by district

Less than 5 months after PO More than 5 months after PO

N=44

24 (54.5%) of the 44 children placed for adoption between 1 April to 30 September 2015 

were one and under when placed; 10 were aged between 2 and 4; and 10 were aged 5 or 

over.

Page 32



Figure 11

24

10 10

One and under Two-four Five and over

Number of children by age at placement

N=44

Of the 44 placements between 1 April to 30 September 2015

 43 were placed with Kent approved adopters

 1 with voluntary agency adopters (Adoption Matters)

 1 was placed with relatives, initially through foster 2 adopt, and one with their 

foster carer

 3 were placed with repeat adopters

 27 children were placed on their own and 19 children were placed with siblings – 8 

sibling groups of two and 1 sibling group of three

 4 were relinquished babies

 6 children were disabled, as per the Children in Need census criteria

6 Matches

Between 1 April to 30 September 2015, 46 children were matched with an adoptive family, 

including 8 sibling groups of 2 and 1 set of 3 siblings. This is 43.9% lower than in the same 

period last year (82). Figure 12 shows the number of children matched each month.

Page 33



Figure 12

0

5

10

15

20

25

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Number of children matched each month

2013/14 (n=172) 2014/15 (n=147) 2015/16 (n=46)

6.1 Placement breakdowns (prior to Adoption Order)

One placement has broken down for a sibling group of 2 boys, who were aged 3 and 5 when 

placed and had very complex neds, five months after they were placed with Kent adopters. 

The plan for these children is now long-term fostering.

7 Placement Orders

Between 1 April and 30 September 2015, 46 Placement Orders were granted to children in 

Kent. This is 15% more than the same period in 2014/15 (40). This suggests that the number 

of POs being granted is levelling out and remaining steady at approximately 7.5 per month. 

Figure 13 shows the number of Placement Orders granted each month since 1 April 2013. 

Figure 14 shows the number of children granted Placement Orders this year by area.

Page 34



Figure 13

0

5

10

15

20

25

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Number of placement orders granted each month

2013/14 (n=164) 2014/15 (n=79) 2015/16 (n=46)

Figure 14

0
2
4
6
8

10
12

Number of POs this year by district

PO granted after 2 months from ADM BI (19)

PO granted within 2 months of ADM BI (27)

60.9% (28) of the children granted Placement Orders were one or under when they were 

granted a Placement Order a similar proportion to 2014/15 (63.3%); 23.9% (11) were aged 

between 2 and; and 15.2% (7) were aged 5 or over. Figure 15 shows the change in the 

distribution of ages since 2012/13 while Figure 16 shows the numbers of children by their 

age when the PO was granted.

Page 35



Figure 15

51.2%

37.2%

11.6%

63.3%

27.8%

8.9%

60.9%

23.9%

15.2%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

One and under Two-four Five and over

Proportion of children granted a PO by age

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Figure 16 

84

61

19

50

22

7

28

11 7

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

One and under Two-four Five and over

Number of children granted a PO by age

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

2013/14 N=164, 2014/15 N=79, 2015/16 N=46

Of the 46 children granted a Placement Order between 1 April to 30 September 2015, 95.7% 

were White (41 White British; 3 children from ‘other’ White backgrounds). The remaining 

4.3% were of Black and Minority Ethnic backgrounds (non-white): all of these children were 

of mixed backgrounds (1 mixed White / Black Caribbean and 1 of other mixed background).

Page 36



We estimate that 90 children will be granted a Placement Order in 2015/16. 

8 Children waiting for adoptive placements

On 30 September 2015, 32 children in Kent County Council’s care were waiting to be 

placed with an adoptive family1. Children ‘waiting’ includes children who are going through 

the process of being matched or are ‘linked’ with a family.

Of these 32 children, active family finding is still ongoing for 1, while 11 have since been 

placed, 5 have had matches approved by the ADM, 10 have matches booked to go to panel, 

2 have had family finding put on hold, and 3 have had a change of plan.

The child with active family finding is a 2 year old White British boy with a disability whose 

placement order was granted in January 2015.

8.1 Early Family Finding

Due to the decrease in the number of placement orders, over the past two years we have 

been undertaking more early family finding for children who are expected to be granted a 

placement order. We continue to work with the judiciary to grant the authority permission 

for early family finding for children who are categorised as hard to place, so that we can 

secure a match as soon as possible after the placement order is granted. This could mean 

visiting prospective adopters as soon as the placement order is granted or, in some cases, 

beforehand.

Our aim is for the children to be referred to the team as early as possible so we can work 

jointly with child care to agree the next steps. 

1 This figure includes children with a Placement Order and a Plan for Adoption, or parallel plan where one of 
the plans is adoption. The figure also includes relinquished children for whom we are family finding.

Page 37



9 Children with a plan that has changed

Between 1 April to 30 September 2015, 18 children’s plans were changed: 8 returned to 

birth family, 5 to permanent foster care, 3 to SGO and 2 returned to birth family under 

supervision orders.

10 Children in care proceedings with an Agency Decision for adoption

19 children were in the Court process on 30 September 2015, where the Agency Decision 

Maker had agreed a plan for adoption but a Placement Order had not yet been granted. 

11 had been waiting less than two months since the ADM best interest decision, 5 children 

had been waiting 2 to 4 months, and 1 for between 4 to 6 months and 2 for more than 6 

months.

Of the 3 children waiting 4 months and over:

 Two children have now been granted a PO

 For one child the plan has since changed to return to birth family under a supervision 

order by the court

11 Children who had an Agency Decision for adoption

58 children had an Agency Decision for adoption plan agreed between 1 April 2015 and 

30th September 2015. This is 31.8% higher than in the same period in 2014/15 (41). 

Nationally there has been a fall of 9.5% between the first quarter of 2014/15 and the first 

quarter of 2015/16.

Figure 17 shows the number of adoption plans approved each month

Page 38



Figure 17

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Number of children's adoption plans approved by ADM each 
month

2013/14 (n=181) 2014/15 (n=92) 2015/16 (n=58)

Figure 18 shows the split of adoption plans approved by ADM, by district.

Figure 18

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

Number of adoptions plan approved by ADM this year by 
district

ADM BI made after 6 months from BLA (19)

ADM BI made within 6 months of BLA (39)

N=58

Of the 58 children with an Agency Decision for adoption plan agreed:

Page 39



 56 (96.6%) were white (54 White British, 2 White Other) and 2 (3.4%) were of Black 

and Minority Ethnic (BME) backgrounds (1 Mixed White and Black Caribbean, 1 of 

other mixed ethnicity);

 34 were single children; 18 were in 2 sibling groups; 6 were in a sibling group of 3. 

There was a higher proportion of children in sibling groups this year (41%) compared 

with last year (32%), which may explain the increase in the number of children with 

an Agency Decision this year.

 33 were aged one and under, 14 were aged two to four, and 11 were aged five and 

over.

12 Service development

Our priorities for 2015/2016 were as follows:

 Recruitment to the management post

 Implement fostering to adopt scheme

 Strengthen Quality Assurance and Performance Management

 Strengthen linking and matching processess

 Timeliness

 Improvement in the delivery of life story book and latter life letter

 Revocation of Placement Orders

Recruitment to the management post: 

An experienced child care team manager started as a permanent team manager for the 

family finding team in March 2015. She has made a huge contribution to the team’s and the 

overall adoption service’s development. 

Implement Foster to Adopt Scheme:

The scheme allows children to be placed with approved adopters on a fostering basis. 

During this period, the status of the adopter is one of a foster carer and the children are 

placed under fostering regulations. This means, subject to the Court decision, the children 

can remain with the same carers who will go on to adopt them. 

Page 40



We have worked with Coram and Coram/Cambridgeshire to learn from their success in 

placing high numbers of children under this scheme. We have been successful in gaining 

support from the Judiciary, Health, CAFCASS and Children’s Social Care. This collaborative 

partnership working is essential to the future placement of children. 

We have run a one-day preparation group for adopters interested in placement of children 

under this scheme and will be running another group in January 2016. A monthly support 

group for carers who have children placed will be run from January 2016. 

We will be developing an information leaflet for birth parents, and health information 

leaflets for carers. We are also hoping to organise a conference in March 2016, with the key 

note speaker being a Judge who has had experience of working with such a scheme. We will 

continue to work with health professionals to increase their knowledge.

Strengthen Quality Assurance and Performance Management:

The Family Finding Team Manager keeps a tight overview of children with adoption plans 

through a weekly tracking meeting with support from the data administrator. This has made 

an impact on further improving time scales as it allows early intervention if necessary. This 

weekly monitoring is further supplemented by the monthly family finding performance 

surgery and joint tracking meetings. 

We continue to make improvements as a result of feedback from adopters – an example 

includes – we now ensure that the new social worker is introduced to the adopters (when 

their social worker leaves) through a face to face meeting. 

Strengthen linking and matching processes:

A weekly linking meeting overseen by the Family Finding and Recruitment and Assessment 

Team Managers has had impact on ensuring the process is transparent and fair, allowing 

each adopter to be considered carefully based on their matching needs. The Family Finding 

Team Manager now presents the complex processes at the adopters’ preparation group, the 

feedback for which has been very positive.

Page 41



Considerable work has been undertaken, led by the Family Finding Team Manager and other 

stakeholders to review the current adoption support plans. The revised plans will be 

implemented in January 2016. The aim is for the plans to be more outcome-focused.

Timeliness:

As this report evidences, timescales continue to improve, and this needs to be celebrated by 

all the stakeholders involved in a child’s journey, including foster carers and adopters. This is 

an area we believe needs to improve continuously (considering it is more than likely the 

Government will further decrease the time scales to be met) through robust performance 

management by all the stakeholders concerned. The LA should be able to meet the targets 

set for 2016-19 if this is achieved.

Life Story book: 

The book should be presented in stages, with the final part provided within 10 working days 

of the adoption ceremony. For the 58 children adopted in the first half of 2015/16 this was 

achieved for 63.8% (37). The delivery is monitored through the monthly tracking meeting 

with children in care service managers, statutory looked after reviews and by senior 

managers. In Addition, 1 child adopted in 2014/15 is still awaiting his life story book. 

Later life Letter: 

The letter should be presented to the adopters within ten working days of the adoption 

ceremony. For the 58 children adopted in the first half of 2015/16 this was achieved for 

48.3% (28). Delivery is monitored alongside Life Story books. In addition, 6 children adopted 

in 2014/15 are awaiting their later life letters. 

The information in relation to life story book and later life letter is sent to senior managers 

in Kent on a monthly basis so that they can ensure the outstanding work is completed. 

Revocation of Placement Orders:

There were 43 children for whom the PO needed to be revoked at the end of March 2015. 

Since then 35 POs were revoked between April and September 2015. As of 11 January 2016 

Page 42



10 POs need to be revoked – 6 where the plan was changed in 2015, 1 where the plan was 

changed in 2014 and 3 where the plan was changed in 2013.

The above information is sent to senior managers in Kent on a monthly basis so that they 

can ensure the outstanding work is completed. 

Conclusion

As the report evidences there has been year-on-year improvement in the placement and 

adoption of children. This success is due to collective partnership of the Adoption Service 

working with a number of stakeholders, including children’s social care, health, education, 

legal and foster carers. In addition the Service continues to improve its robust quality 

assurance and performance management mechanisms through oversight at different levels 

of management in both Adoption and Children’s Social Care. In addition we continue to 

reshape the Service in response to user feedback, local and national policy, legal changes 

and findings from research into good practice.

In our role as the Corporate Parent, we will always aim for children to be placed within the 

required timeframes as we believe that a child’s timeline is very different to an adult’s 

timeline. However occasionally there will be children who we will not be able to match and 

place within the required timescales due to their complex needs and ongoing support 

requirements. For these children there is robust scrutiny and challenge at all management 

levels in both Adoption and Children’s Social Care to ensure there are no unnecessary delays 

within a collective problem-solving approach.

As this is our last report, we would like to thank elected members, senior managers, all the 

staff, managers, health, education, judiciary, foster carers, adopters and children in making 

the four-year Coram-Kent Partnership rewarding and successful, to build upon. We would 

particularly like to thank the children, as it is their resilience we adults need to learn from 

and continuously remember what children require of us as corporate parents: provide 

standards of care that would be good enough for our own children.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Kent County Council and Coram Partnership

Corporate Parenting Panel: 28 January 2016

Six month report on Adopters’ Journey

1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015

Yashi Shah, Interim Head of Adoption Service and Improvement, Coram, Kent County 
Council

Kevin Yong, Head of Consultancy, Coram

Page 45



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

Table of Contents

Introduction ..............................................................................................................................2

Summary Statistics....................................................................................................................3

Adopters’ enquiries...................................................................................................................5

Initial visits and Registration of Interest Forms ........................................................................9

ROIs (applications to Stage One) received from prospective adoptive households .................9

Applications for assessment received from prospective adoptive households ......................11

Conversion rates .....................................................................................................................15

Adopters approved .................................................................................................................15

Kent approved adopters matched with looked after children from other local authorities ..17

Adopters approved who have not yet adopted a child...........................................................17

Forecast of number and types of adopters needed................................................................18

Inter-country ...........................................................................................................................19

Conclusion...............................................................................................................................19

Appendix A – assumptions and calculations in forecasting ....................................................20

Page 46



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

Introduction

This six-month report provides a detailed analysis of performance for all adoptive 

households who made an enquiry, submitted a formal application to be assessed as 

adoptive households or were approved to be adopters between 1 April 2015 and 30 

September 2015. It also includes information about non-agency, post adoption and special 

guardianship support, and panel teams for this time period. The current contract between 

Kent and Coram expires on 22 January 2016 and the management of the adoption service 

transfer to Kent on the 23rd of January 2016. Therefore this will be the last child’s journey report 

presented to the CPP jointly by Kent and Coram. In future the report will be provided the Kent 

appointed Head of Adoption Service.

The Recruitment and Assessment teams are provided with data from the Initial Enquiry 

Team (shared with Fostering Service), who are responsible for fielding the initial calls from 

members of the public who are interested in enquiring about adoption. In addition, the 

teams continue to use a spreadsheet-based tool that captures data for the whole adopter’s 

journey and use it to support effective performance management of every case we are 

dealing with. Coram continues to use this tool alongside Liberi as the latter does not allow 

us to track case progress to the level of detail we need to be able to report on our 

performance in sufficient detail.

From March 2015 it was decided by Kent and Coram that the recruitment of adopters 

should be frozen due to the surplus of approved adopters that the service had and the fall in 

the number of children being granted a placement order. The reasoning behind this is set 

out in more detail in this report.

Page 47



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

Summary Statistics

 The adoption service has seen a fall of 49.1% in the number of enquiries received from 

prospective adoptive households due to the recruitment freeze: 165 were received 

between 1 April and 30 September 2015, compared with 324 in the same period in 

2014/15.

 We received 4 formal enquiries between 1 April and 30 September 2015 (who had 

originally contacted the service before the recruitment freeze), and 17 Registrations of 

Interest (ROI) were submitted.

 17 cases completed Stage One between 1 April and 30 September 2015, with 52.9% 

doing so within the two-month timescale set out in the National Minimum Standards.

 We received 41 applications to be assessed (Stage Two), half of the number received in 

the same period in 2014/15 (82).

 30 were from first-time households, 5 from repeat adopters, 6 from foster carers.

 The majority of households applying were couples: 38 couples (including 2 same-sex 

couples) and 3 single adopters.

 As with previous years, the majority of individuals who have applied are White British 

(89.2%). No applicants were registered as disabled.

 In total 46 prospective adoptive households were approved by Agency Decision Maker 

between 1 April and 30 September 2015. This is 37% lower than in the same period in 

2014/15 (73). No applications were rejected.

 Of the 46 households approved in the current year 37 were first-time adoptive 

households, 5 repeat adopters, 4 foster-carer adoptive households.

 45 households completed Stage 2 of which 80% (36) households were within the four-

month timescales set out in the National Minimum Standards.

 As of 30 September 2015 we had 16 active assessments, of which 1 was on hold.

 Further analysis of all of this is provided in the report.

Adopters’ enquiries

Initial enquiries

Page 48



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

Between 1 April and 30 September 2015, the Adoption Service received 165 initial 

enquiries, a 49.1% decrease compared with the same period between 1 April and 30 

September 2015 (324). Figure 1 shows the number of enquiries received each month for the 

last three financial years. 

Figure 1

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Number of initial adoption enquiries received each month

2013/14 (n=578) 2014/15 (n=571) 2015/16 (n=165)

Seven enquiries were from foster carers wishing to adopt a child in their care and ten were 

from repeat adopters.

Twelve (7.3%) of enquirers were from outside of Kent’s borders: 4 from Medway, 1 from 

Barnet, 1 from Bexley, 1 from Greenwich, 1 from Kensington & Chelsea, 1 from Lambeth, 2 

from Southwark and 1 from Surrey. 69 enquirers (41.8%) did not provide us with any 

address details – in these cases, they contacted us by email and did not respond to our 

attempts to contact them back. Figure 2 shows the distribution of these enquiries across the 

authority.

Page 49



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

Figure 2

8 12
3 6 2

10 7 4 7 11 7 7 4 8

69

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

Number of enquiries by district (2014/15)

n=165

Recruitment freeze

The service put a freeze on recruiting new adopters in March 2015 as a result of the fall in 

the number of placement orders being granted and the high number of households who 

were approved and waiting. We have continued to assess any households who were already 

being dealt with by the service and accepted applications from foster carers and repeat 

adopters looking to adopt specific children. As a result the numbers of formal enquiries, 

initial visits conducted and Registrations of Interest received are very low. We have 

reviewed this decision on a quarterly basis, to ensure that we have sufficient numbers of 

approved adopters.

Formal enquiries

We received four formal enquiries between 1 April and 30 September 2015, from 

households who had originally contacted the service before the recruitment freeze – all 

were provided a ROI form within ten working days.

Initial visits and Registrations of Interest (applications)

The service conducted 8 initial visits in the first six months of 2015/16. Once an initial visit 

has been conducted, we require social workers to write up a report within 3 working days 

Page 50



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

for their manager to review – the manager then has 2 working days to sign off the report. 7 

out of 8 initial visit reports (87.5%) were written up by the social worker within 3 working 

days; 7 (87.5%) reports were signed off within five working days – for the one case that 

exceeded timescales a second visit was needed before a decision could be made to explore 

the vulnerabilities that had been identified around their readiness to adopt. We continue to 

track compliance with these deadlines on a weekly basis, and at monthly performance 

surgeries (tracking individual and manager compliance with the timescales) and as part of 

supervision (performance management). We invite applicants to return their ROI form at 

the initial visit, and our timescales are designed to ensure we meet the 5 working day 

statutory timescale for making ROI decisions.

The Service received 17 ROIs between 1 April and 30 September 2015. A decision was made 

within 5 working days, in line with the national minimum standard, for all of these. 6 were 

accepted on to Stage One, while 11 were fast-tracked to Stage Two (6 were foster carers, 5 

were repeat adopters).

Applications completing Stage One

Seventeen cases completed Stage One between 1 April and 30 September 2015, with three 

not invited to Stage Two. Statutory timelines require us to complete Stage One within 2 

months. We met this timescale for 52.9% (9) of the cases (compared with 49% between 1 

April and 30 September 2015). Three households withdrew their application before 

completing Stage One.

The average time taken to complete the 17 Stage 1 pre-assessments was 76.6 days 

compared with 79 days between 1 April and 30 September 2015. Adoption Leadership 

Board (ALB) data published for 2014/15 reports in August 2015 that the average time taken 

nationally was 83 days.

We continue to track performance on a weekly basis and had a meeting with health 

colleagues in April to start work on agreeing a more efficient electronic process for handling 

and tracking medical assessments. The AD for Corporate Parenting and colleagues from 

health undertook to take this work forward as it is essential to have it in place when 

Page 51



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

recruitment starts again.

Applications for Stage 2 assessment

We received 41 new applications between 1 April and 30 September 2015. This is half than 

in the same period in 2014/15 (82). Figure 3 shows the number of applications we received 

in each month.

Figure 3

0
5

10
15
20
25
30

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Number of applications received each month for an 
assessment

2013/14 (n=153) 2014/15 (n=144) 2015/16 (n=41)

The 73.2% (30) of the applications received have been from first-time applicants; 12.2% (5) 

of applications were from repeat adopters; 14.6% (6) of applications were from KCC foster 

carers.

Adopters’ background

The 41 households consisted of 79 individuals: 38 couples and 3 single adopters. The 

majority were married couples (33), with a further 3 male-female couples co-habiting. 2 

applications were received from same-sex couples.

The 89.2% (71) of applicants are White British. A further 7.9% (5) are non-British white – 

mostly from Western European backgrounds. 2 were of other Asian ethnicity; and 1 was 

Black Caribbean.

No applicants reported having a disability.

Page 52



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

Sevenoaks provided the highest number of applications (6), while there were 2 from 

Medway. There were not any applicants from any other local authority. Figure 4 shows the 

distribution of applications across the twelve Kent districts.

Figure 4

1

4

2 2
1

5
6

3

5
4

5

1
2

0
0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Number of Stage Two applications by district (April to 
September 2015)

n=41

Ongoing assessments and withdrawals

As of 30 September 2015, we had 15 cases under assessment plus 1 assessment on hold due 

to family reasons (and expected to re-start in January), and we expect the 14 active 

assessments to be completed by the end of March 2016.

14 applications were withdrawn between 1 April and 30 September 2015. The reasons for 

the withdrawals were:

- Four changed their minds about wanting to adopt

- Four were not ready to proceed

- Two were moving house

- One wanted to try IVF

- One decided to change adoption agency

- One became pregnant

- One due to work commitments

Page 53



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

There were also 4 approved households who were de-registered between 1 April and 30 

September 2015.

- Two due to falling pregnant

- One decided adoption was not for them

- One due to losing their job

Adopters approved

Between 1 April and 30 September 2015, the Kent CC Adoption Agency decision maker 

approved 46 prospective adoptive households, a 37% decrease compared with the same 

period in 2014/15 (73). 

The approvals were made for 37 (80.4%) first-time adoptive households, 5 (10.9%) second- 

or third-time adoptive households and 4 (8.7%) foster-carer adoptive households. Figure 5 

shows the number of adopters approved by the ADM each month.

Figure 5

0

5

10

15

20

25

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Number of households approved each month by 
the ADM

2013/14 (n=167) 2014/15 (n=138) 2015/16 (n=46)

The Agency Decision Makers also deferred decisions on two applications. These were due 

to:

- Concerns about health and financial security – now approved;

Page 54



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

- More work needed to be done with the applicants to ensure they understood what 

adoption entails – now approved;

No applications were rejected.

Compliance with the National Minimum Standards for Adoption

45 of the 46 households were assessed under the new process whereby the ADM decision 

should be made with four months of the application being accepted. 36 of the 45 cases 

(80%) met this timescale. A further 4 (8.9%) were due to the applicants:

- One assessment was put on hold due to a bereavement;

- One due to concerns that arose around children they had already adopted;

- One was due to the applicant not declaring their full address history and DBS and LA 

checks needing to be re-done;

- One was due to an applicant being out of the country.

For 5 (11.1%) the timescale was exceeded due to the local authority:

- Two were due to the assessment being reallocated to another social worker who had 

to re-do some of the assessment;

- One was due to a disagreement between the agency and the adopters about the 

potential impact on the child they had previously adopted;

- One was due to delays in checks by another LA;

- One was due to an administrative error.

ALB data published for 2014/15 reports that the average time taken to complete Stage 2 

nationally was 128 days – in Kent the average time taken was also 128 days.

We continue to monitor performance with individual social workers on a monthly basis via 

performance surgeries and we are looking to improve further the timescales for Stage 1 and 

Stage 2.

There was also 1 case who had been assessed under the old (pre-July 2013) process and had 

originally been rejected – this decision was subsequently appealed to the IRM who upheld 

the appeal.

Page 55



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

Kent approved adopters matched with looked after children from other local authorities

Between 1 April and 30 September 2015, 15 Kent households have had 20 children placed 

for adoption where the child was from another local authority. One child was placed via the 

consortium - the other authorities involved were Barking & Dagenham, Birmingham, 

Brighton, Bromley, Cardiff, Essex, Middlesbrough, Poole, Rochdale, Southampton and 

Warwickshire. There was also a sibling group of 2 and one single child from Wales placed 

with Kent adopters.

Adopters approved who have not yet adopted a child

At the end of September 2015, we had 72 approved households where no children had 

been placed yet. This is same as at the end of March 2015, meaning we approved the same 

number of families as we linked / matched. Of these by the end of December:

- 15 had a match approved;

- 7 were booked to go to panel for a match, 2 with children from other LAs;

- 7 were with children - 1 with a child from another LA;

- 2 families had withdrawn from the process due to personal reasons.

Of the 41 households with no links:

- 3 have put family finding on hold

- 7 had been approved and waiting for at least a year at the end of September

- 8 had been approved and waiting for between six and twelve months

- 23 have been approved and waiting for less than six months.

Referral to Adoption Register

Of the 41 households with no links:

- 5 do not wish to be registered on the National Adoption Register, as they only wish 

to adopt Kent children;

- 28 had been registered on the National Adoption Register;

- 8 were going to register on the National Adoption Register.

Page 56



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

Sufficiency

As set out in the accompanying Child’s Journey report we are forecasting that 90 placement 

orders will be granted this year. We recently reviewed the sufficiency analysis, looking at the 

situation at the end of October. At the end of October we were actively family finding for 

one child and had 50 approved households with no links to a child. There were also 15 

households being assessed. Recruitment of adopters has been frozen from March to 

December 2015, with quarterly reviews of this. Kent senior management are now giving 

careful thought to future recruitment needs.

Assuming that 15% of children are placed with foster carers, there is an average sibling 

group size of 1.2 children and 10% have their plan changed from adoption (based on what 

has happened in Kent over the past three years) then we will need to place children at an 

average rate of 5 Kent households per month.

This means that we currently have enough adopters to take us to the end of November 

2016. In this calculation we have assumed that some Kent children will be placed with 

adopters from other local authorities.

Once we start recruiting adopters again, we expect the first sizeable batch of approvals to 

occur seven months later. With all this in mind, Coram has recommended to Kent senior 

managers that recruitment should start again from April 2016. This plan will be reviewed in 

January 2016 to determine whether there has been any increase or decrease in the rate of 

POs and hence a new timetable needed. It is likely that recruitment will re-start from April 

2016.

This approach allows us to balance the concerns of adopters already approved that they will 

have the chance to adopt a child given the lower numbers of placement orders, while also 

ensuring we have sufficient numbers of adopters to ensure that Kent’s children do not wait 

unnecessarily.

Any families that contact Kent about adoption are currently directed to First4Adoption and 

other local adoption agencies so that they are able to pursue their dream of adopting a 

Page 57



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

child.

Non-agency team

Between 1 April and 30 September 2015 there were 20 children adopted via non-agency 

with 16 families and no children were granted SGOs. The service received 46 Notifications of 

Intent (NOI) and at the end of September 2015 the waiting list had 79 children / 70 families 

on it. Due to the reduction in demand for agency assessments, staff knowledge and 

expertise has been used flexibly across the service – for example, staff in the family finding 

and assessment teams have undertaken non agency assessments. Agreement was provided 

by Kent to recruit two more additional social workers in this team however, due to the 

uncertainty of the partnership, permanent recruitment has not taken place since March 

2015.

Our priority for this service remains to decrease the waiting list. Monthly performance 

surgery have now also been established in this service from March 2015.

Post Adoption and Special Guardianship Order Support team

The PASGST team provided data for April to October 2015. As at the end of October the 

adoption support team had 1618 children adopted by 1183 families registered with them, 

including 269 non-Kent children adopted by 203 families.

The team provides a timely service through an information and advice line which can be 

accessed by professionals and adopters. Between 1 April and 30 October 2015 the adoption 

support team received referrals for 254 families requesting assessment, leading to 133 

families receiving support (132 received this directly from Kent, 1 family were provided 

support via an adoption support agency). Of these 133 families:

- 15 children were aged between 0 and 4 years old 

- 35 children were aged between 5 and 8 years old 

- 40 children were aged between 9 and 12 years old 

- 43 children were aged 13 and over 

- 118 children were White, 15 were from black or minority ethnic background

Page 58



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

- the majority of cases were due to requests for therapeutic support

Post adoption order break downs

There was one adoption breakdown that we are aware of between 1 April and 30 

September 2015. This was for a child now aged 9 years, who was placed in December 2013, 

and adopted in August 2014. Sadly the placement broke down in summer 2015. We are 

working with Kent to ensure that when adopted children return to care the Adoption 

Service is notified.

Service Development

Our priorities across the Service for 2015/2016 are:

 Recruitment of managers and staff

 Staff development

 Strengthen Quality Assurance and Performance Management oversight

 Strengthen the use of Council’s recording system

 Introducing paperless panels

 Strengthening the support provided to adoptive parents 

 Maximising the use of Adoption Support Fund

 Participation and Developing support groups for adopted children and young people

 Parenting Programmes

Recruitment

Due to the discussions regarding the future of Coram/Kent Partnership, permanent recruitment 

has not taken place now since March 2015. This has meant that the Recruitment and 

Assessment team has been supported by an interim manager (3 days a week) and the Head of 

Adoption Service. It is hoped that permanent recruitment will start as soon as the future of the 

partnership has been decided.

In the Post Adoption and Special Guardianship Support team we are continuing to build the 

multi-disciplinary team including recruitment of a permanent team manager post and a 

Page 59



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

senior clinical lead. As soon as the future of the partnership is decided, we hope that more 

candidates will be attracted to apply.

We are also looking to refresh the membership of the panel. We believe the membership 

should consist of ex-looked after young people, CAMHS and Educations representatives, and 

adopters from diverse backgrounds who have experienced the new process. This work is 

ongoing and we have now had success in recruiting new adopters, a CAMHS representative 

and ex-looked after young people. The Assistant Director for Corporate Parenting is leading 

on recruiting education representatives.

Staff development

A reflective learning group for adoption social workers, facilitated by a child psychotherapist, 

has made a huge contribution to reflective practice. Training in relation to assessment and 

attachment will be provided by an experienced family therapist in January 2016. 

Staff and managers were also provided with 6 sessions from an experienced Coram Associate, to 

strengthen their knowledge and confidence in implementing the fostering to adopt scheme. 

Strengthen Quality Assurance and Performance Management

Whilst timescales for stages 1 and 2 have improved, our aim remains to improve these further. 

We hope that an electronic process for undertaking medicals will be agreed soon to help 

improve timescales for stage 1. The AD for Corporate Parenting and colleagues from health 

undertook to take this work forward as it is essential to have it in place when recruitment 

starts again. We are aiming to bring the average time taken for Stage 1 to below 2 months and 

the average time for Stage 2 to below 4 months.

We have strengthened our internal quality control of adopters’ reports presented to the panels. 

We believe the impact of this has been evidenced through no rejections, and only two deferrals 

and most importantly the Adoption Panel chairs reporting much improved reports.

We introduced our successful model of performance surgery PASGS team in April 2015. This 

has been helpful in understanding the future operational and strategic development of the 

Page 60



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

service and ensuring the current resources are used effectively.

Our aim is to consistently use the Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire to evaluate the 

impact of therapeutic interventions. 

Strengthening recording systems

Considerable work has been undertaken across the service to ensure accurate use is made of 

the different electronic data systems. The Council’s recording system is now totally used across 

the service with system changes made as necessary. The data in the system is reviewed on a 

weekly basis to identify any updates that are needed and staff and managers are requested to 

action as appropriate.

Introducing paperless panels

The Assistant Director for Corporate Parenting has been leading on this. It is hoped that this 

will be introduced in April 2016, as this will support making the administration of panels 

more efficient.

Support for adoptive parents

Eight weekly 2-hour intensive support groups for new adoptive parents were provided from 

January to July 2015 in both the west and the east of the County. In addition a monthly 

reflective parent support group was also provided from January to July 2015 in both the east 

and west of the county. The groups were facilitated by an Adult Psychotherapist and a 

Systematic Family Therapist with the support of a social worker. The overall aim of the 

groups was to provide a reflective space in which adoptive parents could focus on the 

psychological and emotional issues that arise in parenting of adopted children. The outcome 

was for adoptive parents to feel more confident in their parenting. In total the groups 

supported 36 adopters’ households who had adopted 57 children.

Feedback from the participants illustrates the value of the groups:

“This has made us much more open to accessing post adoption support groups in the 

future”

Page 61



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

“Really good advice, and different ways at looking at situations, emotions within my 

children”

“I learnt to talk to the emotions rather than the behaviour, this has helped my child make 

more sense of what he is feeling”, rather than what he is expressing. Thank you so much, 

we have turned a corner.”

“I feel I have real tools in my bag, which are helpful, that really help us both move 

forward, not remain stuck in behavioural issues.”

 “Meeting and talking with other adopters in the same position, also being told what goes in 

the background with family finding, while we wait”

Another group will be run from January 2016 in the east of the county. We are hoping to run 

a similar group in the west of the county. This group is resource intensive, but we believe that 

it is a valuable group to invest in. As a result of feedback from adopters, an information pack has 

been produced for adopters in conjunction with the Adoption Advisory Board, so that adopters 

are clear about what information should be expected from the Council when a child is placed 

with them.

We are in the process of implementing a mentoring scheme for adopters so that new adopters 

are supported by experienced adopters, when a child is placed.

We also held a summer party for adopters and children. This was very successful, with 158 

people attending – 93 parents and 65 children. The ages of the children ranged from 1 to 15. 

We will be holding another party at Christmas.  Feedback from participants included:

“I just wanted to email our thanks for the summer party, my daughter and I had a lovely 

time and it was lovely to catch up with a few familiar faces. I have no suggestions on how 

to improve it as it was pitched just right for us."

 “A good time was had by all and our daughter absolutely loved it, so very many thanks to 

all involved."

Our Learning and Development Programme continues to improve, following feedback from 

Page 62



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

adopters – we now include seminars on impact on birth children, understanding the legal 

issues amongst other things.

Maximising the use of the Adoption Support Fund:

The Adoption Support Fund was available from April 2015, initially for one year, to provide 

funding for therapeutic support to adopters and adopted children.

We informed adopters through the adoption website about the fund, and they have been 

able to hear directly from the Director of the organisation who is managing the fund.

Between April and September the service made 64 applications for funding from the 

Adoption Support Fund, totalling £283,698.46 - £282,608.85 was approved.

The Government recently announced the fund would continue in 2016/17, so we will 

continue to seek funding for the relevant support for our adopters and children.

Participation and Support groups for adopted children/adopted young people

Five young people (aged 13 upwards) contributed to the development of a toolkit for 

schools around working with adopted children and young people.

Seven young people aged 7 to 15 years supported the University of Bristol in designing a life 

story book tool called Trove. This tool allows children to record their life story. We also 

agreed to the use of the Trove in the children’s homes over two weeks in November 2015. 

We are in the process of developing a structured and formalised participation group. We 

hope this group will be established in the New Year. We are also working with Young Lives 

to provide activities for young people.

Parenting Programmes

We continue to deliver successful parenting programmes in conjunction with Coram. Our 

aim is to provide a parenting programme for adolescents in April 2016.

Page 63



Adopters’ Journey – April to September 2015

Conclusion

As this report evidences, the service has continued to improve against a background of 

management challenges. Due to the decrease in demand, we have not recruited to posts 

when staff have left, and at the same time used the existing staff expertise and skills in a 

flexible way across the service. This has also had the added benefit of a much more 

integrated service.

As this is Coram’s last report, we would like to thank elected members, senior managers, all 

the staff, managers, health, education, judiciary, foster carers, adopters and children in 

making the four year Coram-Kent Partnership rewarding and successful.

Page 64



From: Peter Oakford, Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s 
Services

Andrew Ireland, Corporate Director for Social Care, Health and 
Wellbeing

To: Corporate Parenting Panel – 28 January 2016

Subject: PROGRESS REPORT - SUFFICIENCY, PLACEMENTS AND 
COMMISSIONING STRATEGY - 2015-2018

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: Provides an update on progress of the implementation of the 
Sufficiency, Placements and Commissioning Strategy for the 
Corporate Parenting Panel. This document is also a requirement 
of the Annex A inspection pack for Ofsted.

Recommendation: The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to NOTE and 
COMMENT on the progress to date and NOTE the actions and 
activity for the next quarter.

1. Introduction 

1.1. The Sufficiency, Commissioning and Placements Strategy 2015-2018 replaces 
the previous Sufficiency Strategy which covered 2012-2015. It is a required 
document that will go into the Annex A OFSTED inspection requirements and 
sets out the authorities commitment to providing sufficient high quality 
accommodation for Kent’s Children in Care and Care Leavers. The strategy 
outlines the current position in Kent, the challenges facing the authority and its 
response to them. The strategy has been widely consulted on, including with                                                                              
Our Children and Young People’s Council (OCYPC) and Virtual Schools Kent 
(VSK), Care Leaver apprentices.

2. Financial Implications

2.1. The authority makes a significant financial commitment to meet its statutory 
responsibilities to provide a sufficiency of accommodation for Children in Care 
and Care Leavers. In particular, the cost of residential placements and 
independent fostering agency placements is significant.

2.2. This strategy has been informed by the transformation programme and 
progress against the key challenges identified in this document will lead to 
cost reductions for the authority. In particular:

 The ongoing implementation of the redesign of early help services will 
reduce the number of children coming into care

 The delivery of the 16-25 Accommodation and Support Programme will 
deliver improvements in outcomes for Care Leavers,   the quality of 
provision and reduction in costs 

 Work to develop and expand the authorities fostering service will see a 
reduction in the use of independent sector placements

Page 65

Agenda Item B2



 Transformation of the approach to making placements in Residential 
Children’s Homes, ensuring that we are placing children and  young 
people in the most appropriate placement to meet their needs, with the 
right support.  Delivery of this project will see placements made quickly 
and with value for money, while building relationships with the 
marketplace.

 Enhancing the organisational effectiveness of social care will see 
improvements in placement stability and increased rates of  adoption 
and long term arrangements for Children in Care leading to better 
outcomes and reduced costs

3.  Progress to date

3.1. The Strategy outlines four challenges delivery of which is measured by the 
achievement against the eight measures, as set out in the table (1) below. 
Delivery of the strategy will be monitored using these measures. 

3.2. For each of the measures set out in the strategy, a summary of progress, 
activity to date and planned activity for the coming quarter is outlined below. 
Monitoring delivery of the strategy in this way enables us to have a clear 
understanding of achievements to date. 

3.3. Our approach to meeting the Councils responsibilities to provide secure, safe 
and appropriate accommodation to children in care and care leavers is centred 
around the five strategic levers that we believe will deliver improvements to 
sufficiency in Kent. These are:

 Enhancing early help, prevention and partnership working
 Further developing in-house foster care services
 Continuously improving quality of care 
 Market engagement
 Continuing to build organisational effectiveness 

3.4 In addition to the five strategic levers, Kent in common with other Local 
Authorities is facing challenges in accessing secure provision in a timely 
manner.  To address this representations have been made via the Association 
of Directors of Children’s Services (ADCS) to the accountable parties in the 
Department for Education (DfE) and Youth Justice Board (YJB) in respect of 
this.

Page 66



Table 1

Challenge 1:  
The need for effective support and practice 

to ensure that as many children as 
possible are able to remain living at home 

with their families

Measure 1:
We will expect to see a reduction in the 
number of children and young people in 

Care

Challenge 2:
Provision of effective support and 

availability of suitable accommodation to 
meet the needs of Care Leavers

Measure 2:
We expect to see an increase in the 
percentage of Care Leavers who are  

living in suitable accommodation

Measure 3:
We expect to see an increase in the 

number of children placed within 20 miles 
of their originating address for children 

with Disabilities and those in the West of 
the County
Measure 4:

We expect to see the  percentage of 
children remaining in the same placement 

for two years to remain stable

Challenge 3:  
Access to high quality placements that 

support children in care to have stability 
and to achieve positive outcomes

Measure 5:
We expect to grow and diversify the skill, 

capability and capacity of our in house 
foster carers

Measure 6: 
We expect to see a reduction in the 

number of  Children in Care that have 
three or more placement moves per year

Measure 7: 
We expect to see a continued reduction 

in the length of time it takes between 
entering care of the Local Authority and 

an Adoption Order being granted.

Challenge 4:
Quality of practice and support to meet the 
needs of Children in Care , improving their 

experience of care and achieving 
permanence

Measure 8: 
An increase in the number of children in 

permanent long term fostering 
placements

Page 67



Challenge 1:  The need for effective support and practice to ensure that as 
many children as possible are able to remain living at home with their families 

Measure 1: We will expect to see a reduction in the number of children and 
young people in Care

      Table 2: Total number of children entering care at the end of each quarter 
(2012- Sept 2015)

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

01
/0

3/
12

01
/0

5/
12

01
/0

7/
12

01
/0

9/
12

01
/1

1/
12

01
/0

1/
13

01
/0

3/
13

01
/0

5/
13

01
/0

7/
13

01
/0

9/
13

01
/1

1/
13

01
/0

1/
14

01
/0

3/
14

01
/0

5/
14

01
/0

7/
14

01
/0

9/
14

01
/1

1/
14

01
/0

1/
15

01
/0

3/
15

01
/0

5/
15

01
/0

7/
15

01
/0

9/
15

Total CIC
Starts

LAC Starts
(excl
UASC)

Analysis of progress:
 Overall the number of children entering care has risen sharply; however, 

when UASC are excluded Kent has seen a continued reduction in numbers 
of children in care in 2015.

 The number of UASC arrivals has been unprecedented, and has impacted 
on children’s services across Kent. 

 At the end of March 2014 there were 1624 children in care excluding 
UASC, in comparison to this there were only 1435 children in care at the 
end of September 2015. Including the UASC cohort, this number increases 
to 2206 for September 2015.

Activity to deliver:
 The roll-out of the 0-25 Transformation Programme for Early Help and 

Preventative Services is now complete. As a result, the development of 
Adolescent Support Teams in each part of the county has seen a reduction 
of more than 60 children entering care in 2015.

 Within SCS, the roll out of the Signs of Safety practice methodology is 
supporting Social Workers to deliver positive outcomes for children and 
their families by ensuring they receive the right level of support, in a timely 
way. 

Page 68



Actions for next quarter: 
  Focus over the next quarter will be placed on the continued development of 

the Adolescent Support Team model, and further embedding of Signs of 
Safety.

Challenge 2:  Provision of effective support and availability of suitable 
accommodation to meet the needs of Care Leavers
Measure 2: We expect to see an increase in the percentage of Care Leavers who are 
living in suitable accommodation

Table 3: Percentage of Care Leavers living in suitable accommodation

Analysis of progress:
 The percentage of young people contacted who deem their 

accommodation to be suitable is at 90% .However the formal DfE indicator 
used for this priority measures views of young people contacted against 

Page 69



identified cohort so presents a lower satisfaction rate of 59.1% as at 
September 2015.

 The DfE measure of Performance is still below our expectations, and will 
need to improve in 2016. 

Activity to deliver: 
 The 16-25 Accommodation and Support Programme is underway. Work 

stream two will establish a consistent KCC commissioning approach to 
high quality accommodation and additional support for vulnerable 16-25 
year olds.

  The quality of both accommodation and support is being addressed as 
part of future commissioning intentions.

 The 18+ Care Leavers service are prioritising contacts with young people 
to gather their view on suitability of their accommodation in line with the 
requirements of the DfE indicator.

Actions for next quarter: 
 Further progress with plans to procure new supported housing services, 

and implement a new pathway. 

Challenge 3: Access to high quality placements that support children in care 
to have stability and to achieve positive outcomes
Measure 3: We expect to see an increase in the number of children placed 
within 20 miles of their originating address for children with Disabilities and 
those in the West of the County

Table 4 : Number of Children in Care placed within 20 miles of home

Analysis of progress:
Performance has been increasing since 2014 and continues to improve at     

significant rate.
There are variations across the county – and further work is needed to ensure 

that performance in West and North continues to improve.

Activity to deliver:
The Access to Resources Team (ART) undertakes searches within the 20 mile 

radius of a child’s home and/or within the boundary of Kent wherever possible. 
Social Workers work collaboratively with ART to find the most suitable 

Page 70



placement for a child; placements are made outside of the County where they 
are the best match and will achieve the best possible outcomes.

The 0-25 Transformation Programme for Fostering continues to maintain the 
use of in-house Foster placements wherever possible, meaning that 
placements will be local. Performance over the last three months has 
maintained at least a 91.3% in-house placement rate - up from 86.3% in 
March 2015.

 
Activity for the next quarter:
 Over the coming quarter, there will be continued monitoring of the take up of 

in-house Fostering, led by Children’s Commissioning, with a series of regular 
‘health-checks’ to ensure that In-house placements are being considered and 
actively sought where appropriate for the child. 

Challenge 3: Access to high quality placements that support children in care to 
have stability and to achieve positive outcomes
Measure 4: We expect to see the percentage of children in long term care 
remaining in the same placement for two years to remain stable

Table 5: Percentage of Children who have been LAC for the last 2.5 years 
and in the same placement for 2 years

55.0%

60.0%

65.0%

70.0%

75.0%

80.0%

01
/0

3/
12

01
/0

6/
12

01
/0

9/
12

01
/1

2/
12

01
/0

3/
13

01
/0

6/
13

01
/0

9/
13

01
/1

2/
13

01
/0

3/
14

01
/0

6/
14

01
/0

9/
14

01
/1

2/
14

01
/0

3/
15

01
/0

6/
15

01
/0

9/
15

01
/1

2/
15

% of LAC who have been LAC for at least 2.5 years 
in same placement for 2 years

% of LAC who
have been LAC for
at least 2.5 years
in same
placement for 2
years

Analysis of progress:
 The percentage of children in the same placement for more than two years 

has remained fairly stable.
 Performance declined in 2013/14 but then increased towards the end of 

2014 remaining stable up until October 2015.

Activity to deliver:
 Practice Development Officers from Specialist Children’s Services are 

supporting Social Workers to identify appropriate foster placements for 
permanence.

 The Fostering element of the 0-25 Transformation Programme supports 
rigorous focus on placement matches, leading to more sustainable 
placements in the future.

Page 71



Activity for the next quarter:
 We will continue to embed quality practice through the 0-25 

Transformation Programme, and more widely through the work of the 
practice development team in SCS. 

Challenge 3: Access to high quality placements that support children in care to 
have stability and to achieve positive outcomes
Measure 5: We expect to grow and diversify the skill, capability and capacity of our 
in house foster carers

               Table 6: Percentage of Children in KCC Foster Care, Excluding UASC

Analysis of progress:
 The percentage of children in KCC foster care has increased since 2013 – 

and is now above 2012 levels.
 Work in the 0-25 Programme is looking to improve support mechanisms to 

enable in-house foster carers to support those children in care with higher 
complexities and levels of need.  

  Further analysis will focus on qualifications of foster carers, and work to 
ensure carers are supported to improve their knowledge and skills base 
going forward. 

Activity to deliver:
 Training is the responsibility of the Central Fostering Training Manager 

working with the Training Steering Group. An annual programme includes 
training days, workshops and e-learning courses which are responsive to 
the diverse learning requirements of foster carers across the county. 

 There are opportunities for carers to gain nationally recognised 
qualifications, i.e. Level 3 Diploma for Children and Young People’s 
Workforce and BTEC Level 4 Expert Practice in Working with Traumatised 
Children. 

Page 72



Actions for the next quarter:
 Work is ongoing to support Foster Carers in developing their skills base, 

with a range of programmes running to support carers. 

Challenge 4: Quality of practice and support to meet the needs of Children in 
Care, improving their experience of care and achieving permanence
Measure 6: We expect to see a reduction in the number of  Children in Care 
that have three or more placement moves per year

           Table 7: Percentage of Children who were in Care and had 3+ 
placements in the last twelve months

Analysis of progress:
 The proportion of children with three or more moves in a year has 

increased since 2014, but stabilised in 2015.
 Close attention will be needed in 2016 to ensure the number of children 

this includes reduces, and heads back towards 2014 rates.

Activity to deliver:
 SCS & Research and Intelligence (R&I) are undertaking a review of 

children who had more than three placements in the last year to better 
understand their needs and the circumstances that led to placement 
moves.

Activity for the next quarter:
 We will be working with R&I to report on the children in this cohort with an 

aim to improve placement stability. 
 The Corporate Parenting Assistant Director will be leading a review of 

Fostering Placement Stability, as requested by the Select Committee for 
Corporate Parenting in December 2015.

 Continued use of the ‘AWAY Project’ (Adolescent Wrap Around You). This 
is a project to support Foster Carers to enable placements to endure.

Page 73



Challenge 4: Quality of practice and support to meet the needs of Children in 
Care, improving their experience of care and achieving permanence
Measure 7: We expect to see a continued reduction in the length of time it 
takes between entering care of the Local Authority and an Adoption Order 
being granted

       Table 8: Average days between becoming looked after and being placed for 
adoption

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1000

01
/0

6/
12

01
/0

8/
12

01
/1

0/
12

01
/1

2/
12

01
/0

2/
13

01
/0

4/
13

01
/0

6/
13

01
/0

8/
13

01
/1

0/
13

01
/1

2/
13

01
/0

2/
14

01
/0

4/
14

01
/0

6/
14

01
/0

8/
14

01
/1

0/
14

01
/1

2/
14

01
/0

2/
15

01
/0

4/
15

01
/0

6/
15

01
/0

8/
15

Trendline

Analysis of progress:
 The length of time between becoming a looked after child and being 

placed for adoption has steadily decreased since 2012.
 However, since early 2015 this trend has reversed.
 Analysis of trends reversing included a case where a child was adopted by 

their step-parents, who lived in the USA, and the long delays that were due 
to the legal processes that needed to be followed to achieve this.  There 
are also considerable delays in the court system, in part due to more 
appeals by birth parents, and this has also affected timescales.

Activity to deliver:
 Children not yet adopted are tracked through a number of mechanisms. 

Timescale analysis indicates that robust performance monitoring continues 
to impact on the overall timescales.

 Our current priority is to support approved and waiting adopters through 
support groups, individual consultation and maximising searches through 
adoption link, register and other adoption agencies.

Activity for the next quarter:
 A mentoring scheme with adopters who have taken on the parenting of 

hard to place children will be taking place. 
 We will continue to improve timeliness through robust performance 

management and work with health colleagues to streamline the medical 
process minimising delays wherever possible. 

 The Fostering and Adoption services will be encouraging the use of 
‘Fostering to Adopt’ as an option for children and adopters.

Page 74



Challenge 4: Quality of practice and support to meet the needs of Children in 
Care, improving their experience of care and achieving permanence
Measure 8: An increase in the number of children in permanent long term 
fostering placements.

Table 9: Number of children placed permanently with Foster Carers

Analysis of progress:
 There have been moderate increases in the numbers of children placed in 

long-term fostering arrangements since 2014.
 We will continue to track increases, and anticipate an upward curve in 2016.

Activity to deliver:
 SCS are developing a whole service approach to thinking more creatively 

about achieving permanence for children. A family finding fostering social 
worker has been established in South Kent who focuses purely on finding 
children a good match for a permanent placement. In some cases, children 
‘profiling events’ are held, in which the child is discussed and is able to in 
some cases write their own profile for the type of placement that will meet 
their needs. Foster Carers are invited to attend to gain a better sense of 
children and a clearer understanding of permanence as an option. 

 The Practice Development Team (SCS) is leading work to expand the 
learning for Social Workers regarding permanency.

 A range of ‘procedure in a nutshell’ documents have been produced to 
support identifying the best permanence option for children.

Activity for the next quarter:
 Continued roll out of workshop activity to increase learning on permanency 

planning.
 ‘Permanency Day’ similar to the existing adoption activity days is planned 

for early spring. 

Page 75



4. Performance Summary

4.1. A performance summary is attached at Appendix One to this report.

4.2. Progress has been good overall in the first reporting period for the Strategy, 
with clear activity outlined where further improvements need to be made. 

5. Personnel and Training Implications

5.1. The review of progress against priorities identified will form an ongoing self-
assessment and will be the subject of scrutiny at the Corporate Parenting 
Panel. A further progress report will be made available to Corporate Parenting 
Panel in six months’ time setting out work done to address the identified 
priorities.

6. Implementation Proposals

6.1. The Strategy was implemented in July 2015, and the Corporate Parenting Panel 
will receive regular updates regarding delivery of the four ‘challenges’ as set out 
in the strategy and associated action plan.

7. Recommendations

7.1 The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to NOTE and COMMENT on the 
progress to date and NOTE the actions and activity for the next quarter.

8. Background Documents

8.1 Kent County Council’s Sufficiency, Placement and Commissioning Strategy, 
2015-2018:http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-
policies/childrens-social-care-and-families-policies/children-in-care-sufficiency-
strategy

9. Contact Details
Lead Officer
Thom Wilson
Head of Children’s Strategic Commissioning
03000 416850
thom.wilson@kent.gov.uk

Charlotte Walker
Commissioning Officer
03000 416804
charlotte.walker@kent.gov.uk 

Lead Director
Philip Segurola
Director, Specialist Children’s Services
03000 413120
philip.segurola@kent.gov.uk

Page 76

http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-%09policies/childrens-social-care-and-families-policies/children-in-care-sufficiency-%09strategy
http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-%09policies/childrens-social-care-and-families-policies/children-in-care-sufficiency-%09strategy
http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-%09policies/childrens-social-care-and-families-policies/children-in-care-sufficiency-%09strategy
mailto:thom.wilson@kent.gov.uk
mailto:charlotte.walker@kent.gov.uk
mailto:philip.segurola@kent.gov.uk


Appendix One: Sufficiency Strategy Performance Summary

Challenge Measure Current Performance Direction (Since 
previous quarter)

Challenge 1:  The need for effective support and 
Practice to ensure that as many children as 
possible are able to remain living at home with 
their families 

Measure 1: We will expect to see 
a reduction in the number of 
children and young people in Care

Citizen LAC population is stable, 
while UASC arrivals in Kent remain 
above the levels for recent years

Challenge 2: 
Provision of effective support and availability of 
suitable accommodation to meet the needs of 
Care Leavers

Measure 2: We expect to see an 
increase in the percentage of 
Care Leavers who are  living in 
suitable accommodation

59.1% of Care Leavers who were 
contactable are living in suitable 
accommodation

Measure 3: We expect to see an 
increase in the number of children 
placed within 20 miles of their 
originating address for children 
with Disabilities and those in the 
West of the County

Improvements across all areas, an 
increasing amount of children are 
being placed closer to home.

Challenge 3:  Access to high quality placements 
that support children in care to have stability and 
to achieve positive outcomes

Measure 4: We expect to see the  
percentage of children remaining 
the in the same placement for two 
years to remain stable

There has been a marginally 
improving picture over the past 
three years

Challenge 3:  Access to high quality placements 
that support children in care to have stability and 
to achieve positive outcomes

Measure 5: We expect to grow 
and diversify the skill, capability 
and capacity of our in house foster 
carers

The % of children placed in KCC 
foster placements is increasing

Remaining 
Stable

Remaining 
Stable

Remaining 
Stable

Improving Picture

Improving 
Picture

P
age 77



Measure 6: We expect to see a 
reduction in the number of  
Children in Care that have three 
or more placement moves per 
year

There has been a marginally 
improving picture over three years, 
however 2015 performance was not 
as positive as 2014

Measure 7: We expect to see a 
continued reduction in the  length 
of time it takes between entering 
care of the Local Authority  and an 
Adoption Order being granted. 

There is a clear downward trend in 
timescales for AO’s being granted, 
however the second half of 2015 
saw a reduction in performance

Challenge 4: 
Quality of practice and support to meet the 
needs of Children in Care , improving their 
experience of care and achieving permanence

Measure 8: An increase in the 
number of children in permanent 
long term fostering placements

Permanent fostering is being 
increasingly used an a permanency 
option for children with support and 
training for Social Workers being 
rolled out

Remaining 
Stable

Improving 
Picture

Improving 
Picture

P
age 78



From: Peter Oakford, Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s 
Services

Andrew Ireland, Corporate Director of Social Care, Health 
and Wellbeing

To: Corporate Parenting Panel – 28 January 2016

Subject: PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SCORECARD

Classification: Unrestricted

Electoral Division: All

Summary:

Recommendation:

The Performance Management Scorecard identifies the 
key performance data and targets that need to be 
monitored in order to promote the best outcomes for 
children and young people looked after by Kent County 
Council. 

The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to NOTE and 
COMMENT  on the content of the Performance 
Management Scorecard (Attached as Appendix 1)

1. Introduction 

1.1 Performance scorecards have been developed within Specialist Children’s 
Services to identify and monitor progress on a range of areas where 
improvements in performance and practice will lead to better outcomes for 
children and young people.

1.2 The development and oversight of the performance Scorecard for Children in 
Care is undertaken through Kent’s Corporate Parenting Group (KCPG). 

1.3 Separate Performance Scorecards are also in place for Fostering and Adoption 
and key performance measures from these are included in the attached 
Scorecard.

1.4 The latest Performance Management Scorecard is attached as Appendix 1. 

2. Recommendations

2.1   Recommendations: The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to NOTE and 
COMMENT on the content of the Performance Management Scorecard (Attached as 
Appendix 1).
 

Page 79

Agenda Item B3



3. Contacts

Lead Officer
Maureen Robinson
Management Information Service Manager
03000 417164 
Maureen.Robinson@kent.gov.uk

Lead Director
Philip Segurola
Director, Specialist Children’s Services
03000 413120
Philip.segurola@kent.gov.uk

4. Background Documents

none

Page 80

mailto:Maureen.Robinson@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Philip.segurola@kent.gov.uk


Kent Specialist Children's Services

Produced By: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 15 December 2015

Performance Management 
Scorecards
November 2015

Page 79



Produced by: Management Information Unit, KCC.  15/12/2015 Page 2

Kent Specialist Children's Services Performance Management Scorecards

Guidance Notes

POLARITY

H The aim of this indicator is to achieve the highest number/percentage possible.

L The aim of this indicator is to achieve the lowest number/percentage possible.

T The aim of this indicator is to stay close to the target that has been set.

RAG RATINGS

R A red rating indicates that the current performance is signficantly away from the target set.

A An amber rating indicates that the current performance is close to the target set.

G A green rating indicates that the current performance has met the target that has been set.

No RAG Rating RAG ratings are not applied to activity based indicators. Also, if the denominator is 0 no RAG rating has been applied

DIRECTION OF TRAVEL (DOT)

KEY TO ABBREVIATIONS

YTD Year to Date (April to March) CP Child Protection

Num Numerator CIC Children in Care

Denom Denominator BLA Became Looked After

R12M Rolling 12 Months SGO Special Guardianship Order

C&F Assessments Child and Family Assessments UASC Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children

CIN Child in Need SS Snapshot

PF Private Fostering QSW Qualified Social Worker

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR GRAPHS AND CHILD LEVEL DATA
The latest graphs and Child level data are published on the SCS Performance Management website

KEY CHANGES MADE TO THE REPORT THIS MONTH

SMALL DENOMINATORS

YTD DATA

ADOPTION & SG TEAM, ADOLESCENT TEAMS AND CRU

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CONTACT DETAILS
Maureen Robinson - 03000 417164

Chris Nunn - 03000 417145

Paul Godden - 03000 417078

Caution should be applied in the overinterpretation of the results for those performance measures which are calculated against low numbers.  In order to highlight this, any 
denominators with a value between 1 and 9 have been highlighted in light blue. Any indicators that have a denominator that is less than 5 have no RAG rating applied to them.

Many of the performance indicators on the scorecard are measured using a Year to Date (YTD) approach - April to the end of the current month. For the first few months, it is 
advisable to treat the results of these indicators with a little caution as they are often based on a small cohort of children and therefore the percentages can be easily skewed.   

Please note that these teams do not have an indivdual scorecard as their caseholding numbers are very small, however, the performance of the children associated with these 
teams is counted within the county and relevant area level pages

A green arrow indicates that performance has improved this month when compared to last month. Depending on the polarity of the indicator, an 
improvement in performance could either be a reduction or increase in numbers/percentage.

An amber arrow indicates that performance has remained the same as last month.

A red arrow indicates that performance has worsened this month when compared to last month. Depending on the polarity of the indicator, a 
worsening in performance could either be a reduction or increase in numbers/percentage.

Page 80



Produced by: Management Information Unit, KCC.  15/12/2015 Page 3

Kent Specialist Children's Services Performance Management Scorecards

SCS Activity

152 151 152 152 152 151 152 152 152 151 152 151 152 152 152 151

Kent 9272 9284 -12 1246 1304 1111 1127 -16 111 127 2414 2378 +36 969 945 +24 113 67 32 38 -6

North Kent 1093 1096 -3 246 238 182 177 +5 16 11 280 281 -1 84 85 -1 5 5 3 4 -1
East Kent 2340 2310 +30 393 410 446 461 -15 34 49 672 684 -12 127 131 -4 17 21 11 14 -3
South Kent 1653 1678 -25 251 280 312 318 -6 38 44 387 378 +9 74 74 0 22 14 11 11 0
West Kent 1265 1283 -18 252 258 164 165 -1 22 23 386 379 +7 101 104 -3 18 10 7 9 -2
Disability Service 1218 1232 -14 18 73 7 6 +1 1 0 102 101 +1 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0

Ashford AIT & FST 396 378 +18 98 82 100 88 +12 22 10 14 1 +13 0 0 0 15 3 1 1 0
Canterbury AIT & FST 363 401 -38 80 91 112 114 -2 10 14 5 8 -3 0 0 0 1 1 7 12 -5
Dartford AIT & FST 222 229 -7 77 89 48 46 +2 5 3 5 10 -5 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Dover AIT & FST 375 392 -17 72 82 80 84 -4 5 9 3 2 +1 0 0 0 2 1 10 10 0
Gravesham AIT & FST 340 338 +2 97 78 91 88 +3 11 8 1 2 -1 0 0 0 1 2 1 1 0
Maidstone AIT & FST 423 432 -9 115 138 81 89 -8 12 11 10 13 -3 0 0 0 9 2 1 1 0
Sevenoaks AIT & FST 236 238 -2 71 67 33 33 0 0 0 3 6 -3 0 0 0 1 0 2 3 -1
Shepway AIT & FST 453 467 -14 73 106 129 137 -8 11 19 2 0 +2 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0
Swale AIT & FST 559 524 +35 132 93 159 154 +5 17 8 4 2 +2 0 0 0 5 2 3 1 +2
Thanet AIT & FST 640 611 +29 177 202 153 175 -22 6 26 5 9 -4 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 0
The Weald AIT & FST 428 434 -6 137 115 67 68 -1 9 10 5 3 +2 0 0 0 5 2 6 8 -2
North Kent CIC 295 291 +4 1 4 10 10 0 0 0 271 263 +8 84 85 -1 2 3 0 0 0
East Kent (Can/Swa) CIC 367 347 +20 0 4 10 6 +4 1 1 336 336 0 82 83 -1 1 3 0 0 0
East Kent (Tha) CIC 411 427 -16 4 20 12 12 0 0 0 322 329 -7 45 48 -3 9 14 0 0 0
South Kent CIC 429 441 -12 8 10 3 9 -6 0 6 368 375 -7 74 74 0 2 9 0 0 0
West Kent CIC 414 417 -3 0 5 16 8 +8 1 2 371 363 +8 101 104 -3 4 6 0 0 0
UASC AIT 598 565 +33 51 45 0 0 0 0 0 583 551 +32 583 551 +32 45 15 0 0 0
Disability EK 576 586 -10 9 40 3 3 0 0 0 64 64 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disability WK 642 646 -4 9 33 4 3 +1 1 0 38 37 +1 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0
Adoption & SG 123 114 +9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CDT/OOH/CRU 32 69 -37 35 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0
Care Leaver Service (18+) 950 937 +13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0

To
ta

l L
AC

 - 
Th

is
 

m
on

th

To
ta

l L
AC

 - 
La

st
 

m
on

th

CP
 E

nd
s i

n 
la

st
 m

on
th

PF
 C

as
es

 - 
Ch

an
ge

LA
C 

En
ds

 in
 la

st
 

m
on

th

PF
 C

as
es

 - 
Th

is
 m

on
th

P F
 C

as
es

 - 
La

st
 m

on
th

To
ta

l L
AC

 - 
Ch

an
ge

LA
C 

St
ar

ts
 in

 la
st

 
m

on
th

U
AS

C 
LA

C 
- T

hi
s 

m
on

th

U
AS

C 
LA

C 
- L

as
t 

m
on

th

U
AS

C 
LA

C 
- C

ha
ng

e

Ca
se

lo
ad

s -
 T

hi
s 

m
on

th

Re
fe

rr
al

s i
n 

la
st

 
m

on
th

CP
 P

la
ns

 - 
Th

is
 m

on
th

CP
 S

ta
rt

s i
n 

la
st

 
m

on
th

Ca
se

lo
ad

s -
 L

as
t 

m
on

th

Ca
se

lo
ad

s -
 C

ha
ng

e

CF
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 in

 la
st

 
m

on
th

CP
 P

la
ns

 - 
La

st
 m

on
th

CP
 P

la
ns

 - 
Ch

an
ge

P
age 81



Produced by: Management Information Unit, KCC.  15/12/2015 Page 4

Kent Specialist Children's Services Performance Management Scorecards

SCS Activity

County Level

Referrals

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

N
ov

 1
0

Fe
b 

11

M
ay

 1
1

Au
g 

11

N
ov

 1
1

Fe
b 

12

M
ay

 1
2

Au
g 

12

N
ov

 1
2

Fe
b 

13

M
ay

 1
3

Au
g 

13

N
ov

 1
3

Fe
b 

14

M
ay

 1
4

Au
g 

14

N
ov

 1
4

Fe
b 

15

M
ay

 1
5

Au
g 

15

N
ov

 1
5

Caseloads over the last 5 years 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Nov
10

Feb
11

May
11

Aug
11

Nov
11

Feb
12

May
12

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

Referrals over the last 5 years 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

Nov
10

Feb
11

May
11

Aug
11

Nov
11

Feb
12

May
12

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

CP Plans over the last 5 years 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Nov
10

Feb
11

May
11

Aug
11

Nov
11

Feb
12

May
12

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

CP Starts over the last 5 years 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Nov
10

Feb
11

May
11

Aug
11

Nov
11

Feb
12

May
12

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

LAC over the last 5 years UASC
Kent

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Nov
10

Feb
11

May
11

Aug
11

Nov
11

Feb
12

May
12

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

LAC Starts over the last 5 years UASC
Kent

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

Nov
10

Feb
11

May
11

Aug
11

Nov
11

Feb
12

May
12

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

UASC LAC over the last 5 years 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Nov
10

Feb
11

May
11

Aug
11

Nov
11

Feb
12

May
12

Aug
12

Nov
12

Feb
13

May
13

Aug
13

Nov
13

Feb
14

May
14

Aug
14

Nov
14

Feb
15

May
15

Aug
15

Nov
15

UASC LAC Starts over the last 5 years 

Page 82



Produced by: Management Information Unit, KCC.  15/12/2015 Page 5

Lead Responsibility: Philip Segurola

Scorecard - Kent Kent 1 Nov 2015
monthly 152 152 152 152 152 151 152 144 152

Indicators Num Denom

REFERRAL AND ASSESSMENTS
% of referrals with a previous referral within 12 months L YTD 20.8% G 2189 10500 25.0% 20.8% 28.5%
% of C&F Assessments that were carried out within 45 working days H YTD 89.9% A 9936 11056 90.0% 89.7% 84.3%
Number of C&F Assessments in progress outside of timescale L SS 37 G - - 75 44 26
% of Children seen at C&F Assessment (excludes unborn/missing) H YTD 98.1% G 10229 10430 98.0% 98.0% 97.4%

CHILDREN IN NEED
% of CIN with a CIN Plan in place H SS 88.7% A 1979 2231 90.0% 89.9% 87.2%
% of CIN who have been seen in the last 28 days H SS 82.4% G 1470 1784 70.0% 82.9% 61.3%
Numbers of Unallocated Cases L SS 80 R - - 0 86 0

PRIVATE FOSTERING
% of PF notifications where initial visit held within 7 days H YTD 73.9% R 34 46 85.0% 73.8% 88.4%
% of new PF arrangements where visits were held within 6 weeks H YTD 75.6% R 34 45 85.0% 90.7% 88.0%
% of existing PF arrangements where visits were held in time H YTD 80.8% A 21 26 85.0% 76.9% 57.1%

CHILD PROTECTION
% of Current CP Plans lasting 18 months or more L SS 4.9% G 54 1111 10.0% 4.0% 5.5%
% of CP Visits held within timescale (Current CP only) H SS 91.1% G 16184 17765 90.0% 92.1% 91.5%
% of CP cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 100.0% G 823 823 98.0% 100.0% 99.4%
% of Children becoming CP for a second or subsequent time within 24 months T YTD 10.5% A 94 896 7.5% 10.3% 7.5%
% of CP Plans lasting 2 years or more at the point of de-registration L YTD 2.9% G 30 1026 5.0% 3.2% 2.2%
% of Children seen at Section 47 enquiry (excludes unborn) H YTD 98.0% A 2966 3028 98.0% 97.8% 98.6%
% of ICPC's held within 15 working days of the S47 enquiry starting H YTD 85.2% G 777 912 75.0% 84.6% 80.7%
% of Initial CP Conferences that lead to a CP Plan T YTD 86.5% G 896 1036 88.0% 87.7% 90.3%

CHILDREN IN CARE
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 12.0% A 289 2414 9.0% 10.4% 9.6%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 72.3% G 408 564 70.0% 72.3% 72.7%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 77.2% A 1155 1497 85.0% 77.8% 82.9%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 80.2% G 1110 1384 80.0% 81.1% 82.3%
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 94.4% A 3315 3513 95.0% 95.0% 95.6%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 78.5% R 1816 2312 98.0% 87.0% 97.1%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 91.1% G 1302 1429 90.0% 88.5% 89.0%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 91.2% G 1303 1429 90.0% 91.2% 89.7%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 58.0% G 592 1021 50.0% 54.9% 47.0%

ADOPTION
% of cases adoption agreed as plan by 2nd review, for those with an agency decision H YTD 66.7% R 38 57 86.0% 66.7% 68.2%
Ave. no of days between bla and moving in with adoptive family (for children adopted) L YTD 530.4 A 37657 71 426.0 542.2 540.3
Ave. no of days between court authority to place a child and the decision on a match L YTD 233.1 R 16548 71 121.0 237.0 209.5
% of Children leaving care who were adopted H YTD 10.5% A 71 677 13.0% 10.3% 19.7%

CARE LEAVERS
% of Care Leavers that Kent is in touch with H YTD 68.5% A 622 908 75.0% 68.5% 72.9%
% of Care Leavers in Suitable Accommodation H YTD 61.5% A 558 908 78.0% 61.3% 64.9%
% of Care Leavers in Education, Employment or Training H YTD 39.9% A 362 908 45.0% 39.5% 39.3%

QUALITY ASSURANCE
% of Case File Audits completed H YTD 98.4% G 479 487 95.0% 99.3% 95.8%
% of Case File Audits rated Good or outstanding H YTD 54.9% A 263 479 60.0% 52.5% 36.2%
% of Case File Audits rated inadequate L YTD 3.5% A 17 479 0.0% 3.9% 11.9%
% of CP Social Work Reports rated good or outstanding H YTD 71.4% A 1148 1608 75.0% 71.5% 71.2%
% of CIC Care Plans rated good or outstanding H YTD 61.9% G 2352 3800 60.0% 62.3% 46.6%

STAFFING
% of caseholding posts filled by KCC Permanent QSW H SS 76.2% A 335.9 440.6 85.0% 75.7% 79.0%
% of caseholding posts filled by agency staff L SS 19.7% A 86.8 440.6 15.0% 19.6% 18.6%
Average Caseloads of social workers in CIC Teams L SS 15.6 A 1916 123.2 15.0 16.1 15.7
Average Caseloads of social workers in AIT & FST L SS 19.2 G 4435 231.4 20.0 19.4 20.2
Average Caseloads of fostering social workers L SS 18.2 A 860 47.3 18.0 19.6 17.3

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY
As at 30/11/2015, Kent has 18 indicators rated as Green, 20 indicators rated as Amber and 6 indicators rated as Red. When comparing performance from last month to this month, 23 indicators 
have shown an improvement, 2 indicators have remained the same and 19 indicators have shown a reduction. When comparing performance from outturn (March 15) to this month, 22 
indicators have shown an improvement, 0 indicators have remained the same and 22 indicators have shown a reduction.

OUTTURN RESULT

Outturn 
(March 

15) Result

DoT from 
outturn to 

latest 
result

Kent Specialist Children's Services Performance Management Scorecards

LATEST RESULT

Po
la

rit
y Previous 

Reported 
Result

DoT from 
previous 
to latest 

result

PREVIOUS RESULT

Data 
Period

Latest Result 
and RAG Status

Target for 
15/16

Page 83



Produced by: Management Information Unit, KCC.  15/12/2015 Page 6

Scorecard - Impact of UASC Kent 1 Kent 1

monthly 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 152

Indicators Num Denom Num Denom

CHILDREN IN CARE - KENT
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 12.0% A 289 2414 9.0% 10.3% A 149 1445 -1.7%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 72.3% G 408 564 70.0% 72.2% G 405 561 -0.1%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 77.2% A 1155 1497 85.0% 87.4% G 1026 1174 +10.2%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 80.2% G 1110 1384 80.0% 80.2% G 1110 1384 -
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 94.4% A 3315 3513 95.0% 96.4% G 2223 2306 +2.0%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 78.5% R 1816 2312 98.0% 97.8% A 1361 1391 +19.3%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 91.1% G 1302 1429 90.0% 92.2% G 1080 1172 +1.0%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 91.2% G 1303 1429 90.0% 93.1% G 1091 1172 +1.9%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 58.0% G 592 1021 50.0% 60.6% G 575 949 +2.6%

CHILDREN IN CARE - NORTH KENT
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 17.9% R 50 280 9.0% 13.8% R 27 196 -4.1%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 73.5% G 50 68 70.0% 73.1% G 49 67 -0.4%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 81.6% A 146 179 85.0% 84.1% A 132 157 +2.5%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 76.1% A 143 188 80.0% 76.1% A 143 188 -
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 94.5% A 444 470 95.0% 96.1% G 295 307 +1.6%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 98.9% G 272 275 98.0% 99.0% G 189 191 +0.0%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 94.2% G 213 226 90.0% 94.3% G 149 158 +0.1%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 95.6% G 216 226 90.0% 97.5% G 154 158 +1.9%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 54.1% G 79 146 50.0% 58.9% G 73 124 +4.8%

CHILDREN IN CARE - EAST KENT
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 10.9% A 73 672 9.0% 9.4% A 51 545 -1.5%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 75.5% G 166 220 70.0% 75.2% G 164 218 -0.2%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 91.0% G 473 520 85.0% 92.6% G 428 462 +1.7%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 89.0% G 471 529 80.0% 89.0% G 471 529 -
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 94.5% A 1070 1132 95.0% 97.5% G 889 912 +3.0%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 95.7% A 630 658 98.0% 96.6% A 513 531 +0.9%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 87.8% A 477 543 90.0% 88.5% A 399 451 +0.6%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 88.4% A 480 543 90.0% 91.4% G 412 451 +3.0%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 59.8% G 235 393 50.0% 62.1% G 228 367 +2.3%

CHILDREN IN CARE - SOUTH KENT
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 12.7% R 49 387 9.0% 10.5% A 33 313 -2.1%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 72.7% G 80 110 70.0% 72.7% G 80 110 0.0%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 90.8% G 265 292 85.0% 89.9% G 231 257 -0.9%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 79.7% A 240 301 80.0% 79.7% A 240 301 -
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 95.5% G 609 638 95.0% 95.7% G 468 489 +0.3%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 97.6% A 361 370 98.0% 97.6% A 289 296 +0.1%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 97.7% G 302 309 90.0% 98.4% G 247 251 +0.7%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 91.6% G 283 309 90.0% 90.8% G 228 251 -0.7%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 67.0% G 138 206 50.0% 69.6% G 135 194 +2.6%

CHILDREN IN CARE - WEST KENT
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 15.5% R 60 386 9.0% 11.9% A 34 285 -3.6%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 63.4% A 78 123 70.0% 63.4% A 78 123 0.0%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 74.9% R 203 271 85.0% 80.9% A 190 235 +5.9%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 72.6% A 191 263 80.0% 72.6% A 191 263 -
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 95.3% G 531 557 95.0% 96.7% G 411 425 +1.4%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 95.4% A 353 370 98.0% 98.9% G 266 269 +3.5%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 87.0% A 228 262 90.0% 91.0% G 203 223 +4.0%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 90.8% G 238 262 90.0% 94.6% G 211 223 +3.8%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 44.7% A 88 197 50.0% 47.0% A 87 185 +2.4%

OTHER INDICATORS - COUNTY LEVEL
% of Care Leavers that Kent is in touch with H YTD 68.5% A 622 908 75.0% 73.6% A 436 592 +5.1%
% of Care Leavers in Suitable Accommodation H YTD 61.5% A 558 908 78.0% 65.9% A 390 592 +4.4%
% of Care Leavers in Education, Employment or Training H YTD 39.9% A 362 908 45.0% 40.5% A 240 592 +0.7%
% of C&F Assessments that were carried out within 45 working days H YTD 89.9% A 9936 11056 90.0% 90.5% G 9693 10715 +0.6%
% of Children leaving care who were adopted H YTD 10.5% A 71 677 13.0% 15.3% G 71 465 +4.8%
Numbers of Unallocated Cases L SS 80 R - - 0 0 G - - -80

Variance 
with 
UASC  

excluded

INCLUDING UASC

Latest Result 
and RAG Status

Kent Specialist Children's Services Performance Management Scorecards

EXCLUDING UASC

Target for 
15/16

Po
la

rit
y

Data 
Period

Latest Result 
and RAG Status

Page 84


	Agenda
	A2 Minutes of the meeting of this Panel held on 8 December 2015
	B1 Adoption Service update
	B1 Appx 1 - Children's Journey
	B1 Appx 2 - Adopters' Journey

	B2 Progress report - Sufficiency, Placements and Commissioning Strategy, 2015 - 2018
	B3 Performance Management Scorecards
	B3 Appx 1 - SCS Performance Scorecard
	Front Cover
	Guidance Notes
	Activity Page 1
	Activity Page 2
	Kent
	Exc UASC
	North
	East
	South
	West
	Ash
	Can
	Dar
	Dov
	Gra
	Mai
	Sev
	She
	Swa
	Tha
	Wea
	NK CIC
	EK CIC CS
	EK CIC Tha
	SK CIC
	WK CIC
	Dis
	Dis EK
	Dis WK



